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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIQUIDHUB ANALYTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Liquidhub
Analytics Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2020, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and Auditor's Report
thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation for the
other information. The Other information does not include the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS financial

statements. EHTATS
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complled with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate Wit
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on/oii
and where applicable, related safeguards. f -_'
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
government of India in the terms of sub-section (11) of 143 of the Act, we give in the “"Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in Paragraph 3 & 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

(b)

(c)

9

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit ;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books ;

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account ;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act ;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on examination of the records of the Company, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

A. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(a)

The Company has no impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on its financial
position in its Standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 42 to. the- Standalone
\ ‘,I 0N
.\

Ind AS financial statements; =L J¢
/ / 2

\ \
ELNWDHH! E )
, \ ,"rar'_-"




SS KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY

CHARTEARED ACCOUNTANTS

(b) The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on its long-term contracts, the
Company did not have any long-term derivative contracts ;

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education &
Protection Fund by the company.

For § S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756N

Digitally signad by
YOGESH VOGESH KUMAR GUPTA

KUMAR GUPTA Csie mtce2s
Yogesh K. Gupta
Partner

Membership No. 093214

UDIN: 20093214AAAABF1653

Place: Faridabad (Haryana)
Date: June 23, 2020
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(The Annexure as referred in paragraph 1 ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited on the
accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020), we report the following:

Vi,

(a)

(b)

(@

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance
with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its

assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, we report that in respect of immovable
properties that have been taken on lease and disclosed as right to use of assets in the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the

Company.

The company does not hold any inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Thus, the provisions of this clause of the
order are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, with respect to the
loans, investments, guarantee and security provided. The Company has not given any
loan to parties covered under Section 185 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act in
respect of services carried out by the company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

(b)

examination of the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other material statutory dues to appropriate authorities, though there
has been a delay in a few cases.

Further, there are no undisputed statutory dues payable for a period of more than six
months from the date they become payable as at 31%' March 2020.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or value added tax which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute except as given below:

S.No. | Name of | Nature Amount (Rs.) | Period to | Forum where the
the Statute | of dues which the | dispute is pending
amount
relates
1 Income Tax | Income 3,240 AY 2008-09 Assessing Officer
Act 1961 Tax
2 Income Tax | Income | 2,55,240 AY 2010-11 CIT (A)
Act 1961 Tax
3 ‘Income Tax | Income 54,380 AY 2014-15 Assessing Officer
Act 1961 Tax
4 Income Tax | Income 56,07,990 AY 2016-17 Assessing Officer
Act 1961 Tax

According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken any
loans from banks, financial institution & government and has not issued any debentures.
Therefore, provision of Clause 3 (viii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither
come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported durmg the
year, nor have we been informed of such case by the Management. EH
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on examination of the records of the Company, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY

Firm Reg. No. 000756N A
YOGESH Gigitally signed by (’ -1 Cil ) |
vaR  SEmle  (G{ NEWDELHI )
GUPTA 21:56:24 +0530° \o\ !

Yogesh K. Gupta

Partner

Membership No. 093214

UDIN: 20093214AAAABF1653

Place: Faridabad (Haryana)
Date: June 23, 2020
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements of Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our Independent Auditor's Report.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
standalone financial statements (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

o
l\ NEW DELHI |
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to

standalone Ind AS financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind
AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind
AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with
reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For § S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 000756N

Digitally signed by

YOGESH YOGESH KUMAR GUPTA

Date; 2030.06.23
KUMAR GUPTA i (e

Yogesh K. Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 093214

UDIN: 20093214AAAABF1653

Place: Faridabad (Haryana)
Date: June 23, 2020



Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

(Currency : INR in million)

Particulars MNote As at As at As at
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
Assets
Non - Current Assets
Property, plant & equipment 4 46.21 50,54 62.90
Right to use of assets 5 149.58 179.80 211.75
Intangible Assets fi 1.45 2.25 468
Financial Assets
Investments r 6.75 9.15 9.18
Other financial assets 8 18.69 18,35 16.87
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 9 4994 4547 33.16
Income tax assets (net) 10 43.40 4368 40,31
Other non-current assets " - 4.05 7.06
Total Mon-Current assets 316.02 353.29 385.88
Current assets
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 12 264.73 254.69 186.84
Cash and cash equivalents 13 561.96 32092 254.50
Other financial assets 14 164,90 410 8.88
Other current assets 15 140.30 12846 83.82
Total Current assets 1,131.89 70817 534.04
Total Assets 1,447.91 1,061.46 919,92
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 16 37.34 3734 37.34
Other Equity 841.50 607.89 475.24
Total equity 878.84 645.23 512,58
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Lease liabilities 17 157.08 18369 206.84
Provisions 18 a0.11 63.23 52.94
Total non-current liabilities 237.19 246.92 259.78
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 19
-Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.24 - -
-Due to other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 169.56 69.47 4536
Lease liabilities 20 2661 23.15 2207
Other financial liabilities 21 75.06 5178 48.84
Other current liabilities 22 54.10 2313 30.24
Provisions 23 1.60 125 1.03
Incame tax liabilities (net) 24 411 0.53 0.02
Total current liabilities 331.88 169.31 147.56
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,447.91 1,061.46 919.92
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For 5 5§ Kothari Mehta 8 Company Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 000756N
YOGESH ks
Date: 2020.06.23
KUMAR GUPTA 253517 sosser SRINIVASA RAQ tiiuien sao vasoin SUIIT Dguby ity

(Yogesh K. Gupta)
Partner
(M No.: 093214)

Place: F ORIDABAD CHERY drah)
Date: Ty € 2_3”1 wio

KANDULA ute 3200621 1031

=

(Srinivasa Rao Kandula )
Director
(DIN : 07412428)

Place:
Date:

SIRCAR. | feameies

(Sujit Sircar)
Director

[DIN : 00026417)




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020

{Currency : INR in million)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Income

Revenue from aperations 25 1,352.34 1,262.18
Other income, net 26 81.35 26.18
Total Income 1,433.69 1|288.36
Expenses

Employee benefits expense 27 598,49 652.27
Finance costs 28 17.64 19.48
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 61.12 6162
Other expenses 30 35196 386.70
Total expenses 1,129.21 1,120.07
Profit before tax 304.48 168.29
Tax Expenses:

- Current tax 7274 4827
- Deferred tax g (4.35) (12.46)
-Tax af earier year provided / (written back) 233 0.20
Total Tax Expenses 70.72 36.01
Profit for the Year 233.76 132.28

o=t

Other comprehensive (loss) / income

A (i) ltems that will nat be reclassified subsequently to statement of Profit and Loss

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net) (041) 0.52
Income tax relating ta items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of

Profit and Loss 012 (0.15)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss

(i} Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified subsequently to Statement of

Profit and Loss

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income, net of tax (0.29) 0.37
Total comprehensive income for the year 233.47 132.65
Profit attributable to

Owners of the company 23376 13228
Total Comprehensive income attributable to

Owners of the company 23347 132.65
Earnings per equity share : 36

Naminal value of Share Rs. 1(31st March 2019: Rs.1)

- Basic {In Rs)-Other than Class A and Class A 6.25 382
- Diluted  (In Rs)=Other than Class A and Class A 6.25 382
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

Farand on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For § S Kothari Mehta 8 Company Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

(Chartered Accountants)

Firm Regn. No. 000756M
YOGESH e

GUPTA
GUPTA Oat 20200623 SRINIVASA RAO Sitsxsss tmoins SUNT  Soemsar™
: KANDULA l?a“:.;;unm.u LEFET] SIRCAR :\M;;?;ﬁl

(Yogesh K. Gupta) (Srinivasa Rao Kandula ) (Suijit Sircar)

Partner Director Directar

(M No.: 093214) (DIN : 07412426) (DIN ; 00026417)

Place: F‘&ﬂmﬁ“ﬂ&ﬁ PRy Q'Nﬁ_)
Date: D‘UNE 23}4{“”

Place:
Date:




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency : INR in million)

P For the year ended For the year ended
articulars
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 23361 132,65
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 6112 61.62
Tax expenses 70,60 3616
Interest expense on lease liability 17.24 19.23
Other interest expenses 040 0.25
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 0.87 0.64
(Profit)/loss on sale / disposal of assets (net) 063 0.04
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 277 642
Provisions no longer required written back - (10.84)
Prepaid rent amortization (.48 048
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (Exceptional ltem) (34.45) f
Interest on deposits with banks (0.01) (0.01}
Interest income on others (1.49) (1.37)
Operating profit before working capital changes 351.77 245.27
Increase [ (decrease) in Trade and other payable 98.64 24,27
Increase [ (decrease) in non current provisions 16.88 10,29
Increase / (decrease) in Other financial liabilities 2328 1378
Increase / (decrease) in Other current liabilities 3097 (7.11)
Increase / (decrease) in Provisions 035 022
{ Increase )/ decrease in Non current assets 405 341
( Increase ) / decrease in Other non current financial assets 115 (0.21)
{ Increase ) / decrease in other current Financial assets (160.79) 468
( Increase ) / decrease in other current assets (12.32) (45.12)
( Increase ) / decrease in Trade receivables (11.59) (75.07)
Cash generated from operations 341.99 174.41
Taxes Paid (net of refund) (70.61) (51.33)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 271.38 123.08

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Pur_chase of property, plant & equipment induding intangible assets (Including (2462) (15.34)
capital advances)
Sale / (Purchase) of Investments{Net) 36.85 010
Interest Received - on
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.04 0.02
Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 12.27 (15.11)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (0.40) [0.25)
Interest paid on Lease liability (17.24) (19.23)
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (24.97) (22.07)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) {4551} {41&
Net increases (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 241,04 66.42
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 320.92 25450
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 561_._96 320.92

As per our report of even date attached
Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For § § Kothari Mehta & Company Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
(Chartered Accountants) -
Firm Regn. No. 000756N
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE) for the year ended 31st March 2020

{Currency : INR in millian)

Equity Share Capital
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01st April 2018
Mo. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of 1 each issued, subscribed
and fully paid
Opening
-Class A Equity Shares B,364,062 836 8,364,062 B.36 8,364,062 836
-Equity Shares other than Class A 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 2898
Add: issued during the year - - - = - -
~Class A Equity Shares - - - - - -
-Equity Shares other than Class A - - - - -
Equity share capital balance at the end 37,345,685 37.35 37,345,685 37.35 37,345,685 37.35
Other Equity - For the year ended 31 March 2019
Reserves and Surplus Total
Other
Particulars
Securities Retained equity
General Reserve
Premium Earnings
Balance at 01 April 2018 14.84 41.12 419.28 475.24
Profit for Year 132.28 13228
Other Comprehensive Income 037 037
Total Comprehensive Income for the
year - - 132.65 132,65
Balance at 31 March 2019 14.84 41.12 551.93 607.89
Other Equity - For the year ended 31 March 2020
Reserves and Surplus Total
Other
Particulars General Reserve Securities Retained | Employee Stock edquity
Premium Earnings Option Plan
(Holding
Reserve)
Balance at 01 April 2019 14.84 41.12 551.93 - 607.89
Profit for Year 23376 0.4 23390
Other Comprehensive Income (0.29) - {0.29)
Total Comprehensive Income for the
year i ¥ 23347 014 23161
Balance at 31 March 2020 14.84 41.12 785.40 0.14 841.50

Nature and purpose of reserves

1. General Reserve

General reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earings for appropriation purposes,

2. Securities Premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of the Companies
Act, 2013,

3. Retained Earnings
Retained earnings is the amaount of net income retained by the Company after it has paid out dividends to its shareholders.

4. Employees Stock Option Reserve

Capgemini SE the ultimate parent company allocated performance shares of the group company to certain employees of the Company. The grant of such
performance and emplayment linked shares relate to the share capital of the group company and has no impact on the Company's share capital. The Campany
determines the campensation cost based on grant date fair value method. This amount is recognised in employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment te Employee stock option reserve for employee subscription plan (refer note

45)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our repart of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For 5 5 Kothari Mehta & Company Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR im million)

-

Corporate Overview

Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited (" the Company”) is a private limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated in India under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and has its registered office at 2nd Floor, A Block, A wing, IT 1 and IT 2 Airoli Knowledge
Park, Thane Belapur Road Airoli Navi Mumbai Thane MH 400708 IN.

The Company is primarily engaged in providing Information Technology (“IT") and IT- enabled operations offshore outsourcing
solutions and BPO (Business Process Outsourcing) Service to large and medium-sized organizations using an offshore/onsite model.
The comparny has its subsidiaries in United States, United Kingdom, China and Singapore.
Capgemini America Inc., USA was the holding company of LiquidHub Analytics Private Limited. During the current year, Capgemini
America Inc, USA has sold its holding in the Company to Capgemini Technology Services India Limited, India (CTSIL) on November
25, 2019 and accordingly, CTSIL became the holding company effective such date. Capgemini SE, France is the ultimate holding

company
2 Significant accounting policies

a) Statement of compliance and basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) and other relevant
provisions of the Act.
The standalone financial statements of the Company for all the periods upto and including the year ended 31st March 2018, are
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 ('Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act. As these are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied. An explanation of
how the transition to Ind AS has been affected the previously reported financial position and financial performance of the Company
is provided in Note 03.
All amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian rupees (INR in millions) except share and per share
data, unless otherwise stated,
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concern basis except for
the certain financial assets and liabilities and defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period (refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument).

b) Functional currency and presentation currency
These financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency, All amounts have
been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise stated.

¢) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of aperations during the reporting
period. Examples of such estimates include estimates of contract costs to be incurred to complete software development project,
provision for taxes, employee benefit plans, provision for doubtful debts and advances and estimated useful life of Property, plant
and equipment, Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods

Revenue Recognition
The Company uses the percentage-of-completion methad in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. The use of the percentage-of-

completion method requires the Company to estimate the costs expended to date as a proportion of the total costs to be expended.
Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure pragress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input
and productivity.

Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the periad in which such losses become probable
based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.

Further, the Company uses significant judgments while determining the transaction price allocated to performance abligations using
the expected cost plus margin approach,
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

Taxes
The Company pravides for tax considering the applicable tax regulations and based on reasonable estimates. Management

periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns giving due considerations to tax laws and establishes provisions in the event
if required as a result of differing interpretation or due to retrospective amendments, if any. The recognition of deferred tax assets is
based on availability of sufficient taxable profits in the Company against which such assets can be utilized. MAT (Minimum Alternate
Tax) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
and will be able to utilize such credit during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in Deferred tax
assets, The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and if required, writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will be able to absorb such credit during
the specified period.

Defined Benefit Plans and Compensated Absences

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Allowances for Trade Receivables

The Company follows a 'simplified approach’ (ie. based on lifetime ECL) for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables. For the purpose of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade receivables, the Company estimates irrecoverable
amounts based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience. Further, a large number of minor receivables are
grouped into hamageneous Companys and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible.

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year

end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Impairment of Non-financial assets
Mon-financial assets are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circurnstances indicate that the carrying amount of

such assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Provisions and Contingent

Liabilities
Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-

value assets, The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying assets

Right to use of assets
The Company recagnises right to use of assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available

for use). Right to use of assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of Right to use of assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right to use of
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the sharter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets

The Right ta use of assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies Impairment of non-financial assets




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset
c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (ie, those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

d) Current - non-current Classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current,
Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
i. Itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or cansumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;
il. itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
iii. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date,

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. itis expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ji. itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

jii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date, Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do

not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liakilities.
All ather liabilities are classified as non-current.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents,
generally twelve month is considered as operating cycle.

e) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and ecuipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its warking condition for the intended use. Tracle discounts and rebates, if any, are

deducted while computing the cost.
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 [Currency ; INR in million)

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and
equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance,

All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repairs and maintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred,

Gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lass when the asset is disposed.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognized as at 1 April 2018 measured as per the Previous IGAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property,
plant and equipment.

f) Capital work in Progress
The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use before the balance sheet date is disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as at balance sheet date is disclosed under
Other non-current assets

g) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
The Company has provided for depreciation using straight line method over the useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment as

estimated by management.

The management's estimate for useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment are as below —

Gross block Useful Life

Camputers* 3 years

Furniture and fixtures* & ** 7 years

Office equipment * & ** 7 years

Leasehold improvements lower of 6 years or primary period of the lease

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent
the period over which management expects to use these assets,

Hence the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act
2013.

**During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company had re-estimated the useful life of these assets from 4 years to 7 years, the
impact of such change was not significant

Depreciation is charged on a proportionate basis from / up to the date the assets are purchased / sold during the year.

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable value and shown
under ‘Other current assets’.

A fived asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal.
Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of Property, plant and equipment which are carried at cost are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

h

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, .Computer software held for use for business purpose is
amortised over an estimated useful life of 3 - 5 years or the period of licenses, whichever is lower.

Internally developed software is capitalized when it is developed and when it is probable that the future economic benefit that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The cost of intangible assets
includes the cost of prototype testing, development cost including the cost of labour, input material and all other directly identifiable
incidental expenses attributable to bringing the assets to its working conditions

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future econamic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Gains
or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Computer software held for use for business purpose is amortised over an estimated useful life of 3 - 5 years or the period of
licenses, whichever is lower
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment which are not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually. Other Property, plant and
equipment (tangible and intangible) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of impairment. For
assets in respect of which any such indication exists and for intangibles mandatorily tested annually for impairment, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount,

Impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses
may no longer exist or may have decreased, If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. A
previausly recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverahle amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such
investments are macle, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. However,
that part of long term investments which is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date is also presented under
‘current assets’ as "current portion of long term investments” in consonance with the current/non-current classification scheme of

Schedule Il of the Act.

Long term investments are stated at cost less other than temporary decline in the value of such investments, determined separately
for each individual investment.

Current investments are carried in financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined by category of investment. The fair
value is determined using quoted market price/market observable information adjusted for cost of disposal. The comparison of cost
and fairvalue is done separately for each individual investment.

Any reductions in the carrying amount and any reversals of such reductions are charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and
Loss

On disposal of the investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition
The Company primarily derives revenue from rendering IT, IT related services and business process outsourcing services.
The company adopted to apply IND AS 115 via retrospective method with restatement of March 2019 comparative figures and

recognition of the aggregate impact in equity at April 1 2018,

On implementing the full retrospective method, the company applied a number of practical expedients. Accordingly completed
contracts:

-That ended before April 1 2018

=And/or included variable consideration;

Were not restated for revenue recognition purposes.

The impact of the adoption of the Standard on the financial statements of the company is insignificant

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for thase products or services,
The method for recognizing revenue depends on the nature of the services rendered:

i.Time and material contracts
Revenue from time and material contracts is recognized over the time as the related services are rendered. Revenue from these

contracts are measured based on the number of hours spent on the contract.

\‘,[\ NEW DELH )




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 {Currency : INR in million)

ii.Fixed price contracts

Revenue from fixed-price development contracts is recognized using the percentage of completion method, under which the
contract performance is determined by relating the actual costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs for each contract. The
cost incurred (or input) methed is used to measure progress as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. If the
Company does not have a sufficient basis to measure the progress of completion or to eliminate the total contract revenue and
costs, revenue is recognized only to the extent contract costs incurred, for which recoverability is probable. The related costs on
deliverable- based contracts are expensed as incurred. The Company earns contractually the right to bill upon achievement of
specified milestones or upon customer acceptance of work performed. The difference between cumulative hillings and cumulative
revenue recognised is reflected in the balance sheet as contract assets or contract liabilities. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on
cantracts-in-progress are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current cantract estimates,
Contract losses are determined to be the amount by which the estimated incremental cost to complete exceeds the estimated future
revenues that will be generated by the contract and are included in cost of revenues and recorded in other accrued liabilities,

iii.Fixed Price maintenance costs
Revenue on services- based contracts is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of

performance. Recurring services are generally considered to be one single performance obligation, comprised of a series of distinct
daily units of service satisfied over time.

iv.Others
Revenue from services rendered ta parent company, ultimate parent company and fellow subsidiaries is recognized on cost plus

mark-up basis determined on arm's length principle as and when the related services are rendered,

Revenue on multi- deliverable contracts is recognised applying the appropriate method as specified above, depending an the
performance obligations identified.

Export incentive entitlements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established
and there is no uncertainity in receiving the same.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits, if
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers,

A provision for onerous contracts is recorded if the unavoidable costs of fulfilling the contract exceed the related benefits

Critical Judgements

-The Company’s contracts with customers may include promises to transfer multiple products and services to a customer.
Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to
benefit independently from such deliverables,

-When multiple Performance Obligations are identified within a single contract, the Company allocates the total contract price to the
Performance Obligations based on their relative Standalone Selling Price (*SSP). In the absence of directly observable prices for
similar services sold separately to similar customers, SSPs are estimated, based on expected costs plus a margin rate commensurate
with the nature and risk of the service. Further, the Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time,

-ludgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount
of custormer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance
bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contract includes a significant financing component,

-Revenue for fixed-price contracts is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Company uses judgement to estimate
the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the degree of the completion of the performance
obligation.

-Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain costs which meet the criteria for capitalisation. The
assessment of this criteria requires the application of judgement, in particular when considering if costs generate or enhance
resources to be used to satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered.

Contract Assets and Liabilities
Contract assets are presented separately from trade receivables. Contract assets reflect revenue recognized for which the

corresponding rights to receive consideration are contingent upon something else other than the passage of time, such as the
Company's future performance, achievement of billing milestones, or customer acceptance. Accordingly, contract assets (unbilled
revenue) is disclosed under other current assets. When customer contract assets are no longer contingent, except for the passage of
time, they convert into trade receivables.
Contract liabilities represent consideration received or receivable in advance of performance or billing in excess r
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

Contract assets and liabilities are presented on a net basis for each individual contract.
The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and / or milestone based progress

payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is
established. Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

» the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied on time proportion basis to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired} or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that
have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to

the gross basis,

Foreign Currency transactions and balances

Initial recognition

The company is exposed to foreign currency transactions including foreign currency revenue, receivables, expenses, payables and
borrowings, Foreign exchange transactions during the year are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year.

Translation

Manetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a fareign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities that are measured
based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction,

Exchange differences are recognize in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

Translation of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations (subsidiaries) including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are

translated into INR, the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated into INR at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction,

When a fareign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence ar joint contral is lost, the
cumulative amount of exchange differences related to that foreign operation recognised in OCI is reclassified to the Statement of
Profit and Loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Company disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains
control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is re-allocated to OCI.

Employee Benefits

i. Short- Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving emplayee services are classified as short-term employee
benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

ii. Post- Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan

Provident fund

Employee benefits in respect of Provident fund except as stated below, is a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a
post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay
any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to a Government
administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense
in the Statement of Profit and Lass during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(i) Defined benefit plan
Provident fund
Contributions made to the Government in respect of the employee’s pension scheme are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss

in the year in which incurred.
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Gratuity
The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is

calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their services in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Such net obligation is recognized either as an asset or as a liability
in the balance sheet. The calculation of the Company's obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method which recagnizes each period of service that gives rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of taxes, for the period in which they occur. All expenses related to defined benefit plan is recognised in
employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Past service cost both vested and unvested is recognised as an expense at the earlier of

- when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and

- when the entity recognises related restructuring cost or termination benefits.

The Company recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or
settlement oceurs,

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or
receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized whally
within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit, The obligation in respect
of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of
estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan is
based on the market yields as at the balance sheet date on Government securities, having maturity periods approximating to the
terms of the related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of taxes, for the period in which they occur. To the
extent the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the utilization or encashment of the accumulated compensated
absences, the liability determined based on actuarial valuation is considered to be a current liability

n) Employee stock compensation
Capgemini SE, the ultimate parent company has also allocated performance shares of the group company to the employees of the
Company. The grant of the such performance and employment linked shares relate to the share capital of the group company and

has no impact on the Company's share capital.

Such stock based awards' compensation expenses is recognised in "Employee benefits expense” in the Statement of Profit and Loss
an a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding credit to current / non-current financial liabilitites.

o) Income Taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates

to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and
tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reparting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts,
and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously,

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:
-temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that affects neither accounting nor

taxable Profit and Loss at the time of the transaction;

\ 5 \
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-temporary differences related to investments in subsicliaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future; and

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available, Therefore, in case of a
history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset
can be realised.

Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent
that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover ar settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they
relate to incormne taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

—

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, buyback, share split, and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources,

P

The number of equity shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of equity shares
considered to derive the basic EPS, and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares which are deemed converted at the beginning of reporting period, unless issued
at a later date,

1) Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate raquired to settle the
obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.
Onerous Contracts
A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the company from the contract are lower
than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision
is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract,

r) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

5) Statement of cash flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits befare tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-

cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue
generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregatecl.
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t) Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recegnised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

on initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost;

- FVOCI - debt investment;

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTFL:

-the asset is held within a business madel whose abjective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

-the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A Financial assets is measured at FVOCH if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

-the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

-the eontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FWOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL

Financial assets; Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial assets at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in OCl. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost ar FVTPL, A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
awnership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset, If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
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Financial liabilities

The Company derecagnises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. The Company
also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value, The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the

Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment
i) Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost . A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’

when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data;

significant fimancial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
& a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;
F the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwisg;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
L the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which are
measured as 12 month expected credit losses:
- bank balances for which credit risk {i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.
12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12
maonths after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which
the Campany is exposed to credit risk. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information,

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 180 days past due.
The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is 360 days or more past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash

shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet:
- Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

- For debt securities at FVOC!, the loss allowance is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and is recognised in OCI.
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Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect

of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due,

ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reportingFor impairment testing, assets that
do not generate independent cash inflows are combined together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the
smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amaunt is
estimated.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in
use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
{or Company of CGUSs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods The Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amartisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification

which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020
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Transition to Ind AS
For the purposes of reporting as set out in Note 2 , The Company has transitioned the basis of accounting from Indian generally accepted

accounting principles (“IGAAP") (which was the previous GAAP) to Ind AS. The accounting policies set out in note 2(a) have been applied in
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2018 (the “transition date").

In preparing the opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted amounts reported in financial statements prepared in accordance
with IGAAP. An explanation of how the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has affected the financial performance, cash flows and financial position
is set out in the following tables and the notes that accompany the tables. On transition, the Company did not revise estimates previously made
under IGAAP except where required by Ind AS.

Exemption availed on first-time adoption on Ind AS 101

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS.

The Company has accardingly applied the following exemptions:-

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

As per Ind AS 107 an entity may elect to:
measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date.

use a previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment at or before the date of transition as deemed cost at the date of
the revaluation, provided the revaluation was at the date of their revaluation, broadly comparable to

-Fair Value
-or cost or depreciated cost under Ind AS adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or specific price index

use carrying values of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as on the date of transition to Ind AS (which are measured in
accordance with previous GAAP and after making adjustments relating to decommissioning liabilities prescribed under Ind AS 101) if there has
been no change in its functional currency on the date of transition.

As permitted by Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure property, plant and equipment at their carrying values under Indian GAAP as at
transition date"

Non current investments
As per Ind AS 101, an entity shall measure investment in subsidiaries, joint venture or associate at one of the following amounts in its separate
opening Ind AS Balance Sheet:

(a) cost determined in accordance with Ind AS 27; or

(b) deemed cost.

As permitted by Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure investment in subsidiaries at cost at that date.”
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Reconciliation of equity

| As at 1st April 2018 [ As at 31st Mlarch 2019
Particulars Note Amount Effects of Amount Amount Effects of Amount
No. as per transition to as per asper transition to as per
IGAAP Ind AS Ind AS IGAAP Ind AS Ind AS
Assets
Non - Current Assets
Praperty, plant & equipment 1 62.90 - 6290 50.54 = 50.54
Right to use of assets - 211,75 21175 - 179.80 179.80
Intangible Assets 468 - 468 225 - 225
Financial Assets
Investments .15 = 9.15 9.15 - 915
Cther financial assets 2 2862 {11.75) 16,87 28,71 (10.36) 18.35
Daferred Tax Assels (net) 3 nn 205 3316 40.02 545 4547
Income tax assets (net) 40,31 - 4031 4368 - 43,68
Other non-current assets 7.06 T 7.06 4.05 - 405
Total Nan-Current assets 183.83 202,05 385.88 178.40 174.39 353.29
Current assets
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 186.84 - 186.84 25470 (.01} 254.69
Cash and cash equivalents 254,50 ~ 254.50 320,92 B 32092
Other financial assets a88 = 888 410 2 410
Other current assets 80.51 3.31 83.82 12563 2.83 12846
Total Current assats 53073 3.31 534.04 705.35 2.82 70817
Total Assets 714.56 205.36 919.92 BB3.75 177N 1.061.46
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 37.34 - 37.34 3734 - 37.34
Other Equity 47436 .58 475.24 611.63 (3.74) 60769
Total aquity 511.70 0.88 512.58 648,97 (3.74) 645.23
LIABILITIES
Man-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Lease liabilities 4 - 206.84 20684 # 18369 183,69
Prowisions 52.94 - 5294 6323 - 63.23
Other non-current liabilities 5 2436 (24.36) - 25.21 (25.21) -
Total non-current liabilities 77.30 182.48 259.78 88.44 158.48 246.92
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
-Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - - - £ - -
-Due tt_} ather than Micro Enterprises and Small J5 58 . 4536 6047 E i
Enterprises
Lease liabilities 6 - 2207 2207 o 2315 23.15
Other financial liabilities 4B.84 = 48.84 51.78 = 51.78
Other current habilities 7 30.24 - 30.24 2313 - 2313
Provisions 1.10 (0.07) 1.03 143 0.18) 1.25
Income tax liabilities (net) 0.02 = .02 0.53 4 0.53
Total current liabilities 125.56 22.00 147.56 146.34 22.97 169.31
Total Equity and Liabilities 714.56 205.36 919.92 BB3.75 177.71 1,061.46

Notes to Reconciliation of equity

Right to use Assets 8¢ Lease liability as per IND AS 116
On adoption of Ind AS 116, the compay has to create Financial Lease Assets and Financial Lease Liabilities for the assets taken on lease for a period more than 12 months. On implementation of Ind AS

116, Lease assets and lease laibilities has been created as on 1st April 2018 considering modified restrospective approach. Interest expenses is booked on lease liabilities and depreciation is charged on
financial lease assets in FY 2018-19,

Fair valuation of security deposits
Under Ind AS 109, Deposits are financial assets and need to be measured at fair value using a discounted cash flow method. Under previous GAAP, such deposits were measured at historical cost. Due

to this security deposits amount has been reduced and amaortized till 1st April 2018 through retained earnings and remaining amount is adjusted with right of use of assets as per Ind AS 116
Interest income on prepaid rent is adjusted with retained earmings,

Deferred Tax Impact on Ind AS adjustments
In accordance with Ind AS 12, “Income Taxes”, the Company on transition to Ind AS has recognised deferred tax on temporary differences, i.e. based on balance sheet approach as compared to the
earlier approach of recognising deferred taves on timing differences , ie. profit and loss approach. The tax impacts as above primarily represent deferred tax.

Lease equalization reserve
In compliance eofl Ind AS 116, The lease equilization reserve created as per previous GAAP has been adjusted with Right 1o use of assets created on discounting of lease laibilities.
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Reconcilation of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March (Currency : INR in million)
Particulars Note No. Amount Efie'c_ts of Amount

as per transition to as per

IGAAP Ind AS Ind AS
Income
Revenue from operations 1,262.18 - 1.262.18
Other income, net 1 24 81 137 26.18
Total Incame 1,286.99 1.37 1,288.36
Expenses
Employee benefits expense & 644.16 8.11 652.27
Finance costs 3 0.25 19.23 19.48
Depreciation and amortization expense 4 29.68 31.94 61.62
Other expenses 5 436.07 (49.37) 386,70
Total expenses 1,110.16 9.91 1,120.07
Profit before tax 176.83 (8.54) 168.29
Tax Expenses:
- Current tax 4827 - 48.27
- Deferred tax G (B.91) (3.40) (12.46)
-Tax of earlier year provided / (written back) 0.20 - 0.20
Total Tax Expenses 39,56 (3.40) 36.01
Profit for the Year 137.27 (5.14) 132.28
Other Comprehensive Income
(iMtems that will not be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss
R ements of the defined benefit plans 7 - 0.52 0.52
(i} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified {0.15) (0.15)
subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss 4
(i) ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss = - =
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified
subsequently ta Cansolidated Statement of Profit and Loss - - -
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income, net of tax = 0.37 0.37
Total comprehensive (loss)/i for the period 137.27 (4.77) 132,65
Earnings per equity share : 36
Nominal value of Share Rs, 1 (31st March 2019; Rs.1)
- Basic (In Rs.)-Other than Class A and Class A 3.95 (0.14) 3.82
- Diluted {In Rs)-Other than Class A and Class & 395 (0.14) iz

Notes to reconcilation of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019.

1. Interest on security deposits
Under Ind AS 109, Deposits are financial assets and need to be measured at fair value using a discounted cash flow method. Under previous GAAP, such

depasits were measured at historical cost. .

Interest income charged on Security depasit each year on the present value of security deposits

2 & 7. Remeasurement of Employee Benefit cost

As per Ind AS 19, Employees Benefits, acturial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive Income and not reclassified to P&L in
Subsequent period.

3, 4 & 5. Right to use Assets 8 Lease liability as per IND AS 116

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the compay has to create Financial Lease Assets and Financial Lease Liabilities for the assets taken on lease for a period
mare than 12 months. On implementation of Ind AS 116, Lease assets and lease laibilities has been created as on 1st April 2018 considering madified
restrospective approach, Interest expenses is booked on lease liabilities and depreciation is charged on financial lease assets in FY 2018-19.

6. Deferred Tax Impact on Ind AS adjustments

In accardance with Ind AS 12, "Income Taxes”, the Company on transition to Ind AS has recognised deferred tax on tempaorary differences, ie. based on
balance sheet approach as compared to the earlier approach of recognising deferred taxes on timing differences , ie, profit and loss approach, The tax
impacts as abowe primarily represent deferred tax.
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Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019
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Note Equity Recaonciliation

A By Reference 1 April 2018 31 March 2019
Shareholder's equity for the as per previous GAAP (Indian

GAAP) 474.36 611.63
Ind AS adjustments;

Security Deposits for rental premises 1 324 4,61
Prepaid Rent Amortization 2 (4.40) (4.88)
Depreciation on Right to use of assets 3 E (31.95)

Effect of remeasurement of post-employment benefit
obligation recognized through Other comprehensive

inrome 037
Interest on Lease liabilty 4 - (19.23)
Reversal of Rent due to applicabilty of IND AS 116 5 - 38.50
Reversal of Office Maintenance Charges due to applicabilty

of IND AS 116 5 < 2.80
Lease equilization reserve b = 0.96
Other comprehensive income 0.37
Deferred Tax on abave 7 204 5.44
Shareholder’s equity as per Ind AS 475.24 607.89

Notes to reconciliation of total equity and total comprehensive income

182 Fair valuation of security deposits
Under Ind AS 109, Depaosits are financial assets and need to be measured at fair value using a discounted cash flow method. Under previous GAAP, such

deposits were measured at historical cost. Due to this security deposits amount has been reduced and amortized till 1st April 2018 through retained
earnings ancl remaining amount is adjusted with right of use of assets as per Ind AS 116.
Interest income on prepaid rent is adjusted with retained earnings.

34 &5 Right to use & Lease liability
On adoption of Ind AS 116, the compay has to create Financial Lease Assets and Financial Lease Liabilities for the assets taken on lease for a period more
than 12 months, On implementation of Ind AS 116, Lease assets and lease laibilities has been created as on 1st April 2018 considering modified
restrospective approach. Interest expenses is booked on lease liabilities and depreciation is charged on financial lease assets in FY 2018-19.

6 Lease equilization reserve
The Company has lease rent escalation within the long term leases entered into. It does not straight line such escalations under the Previous GAAP.
Under Ind AS there is a carve out that if the rate of escalation is in line with the rate of inflation rentals are not required to be straight-lined. If it is not in
line with inflation, the entity would need to straight-line such escalations. The impact on total equity and profit and loss is on account of timing difference
in recognition of expenses under the lease accounting maodel as compared to those recognised under the Previous GAAP

7 Deferred Tax
Previous GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary
differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in
recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required to be recognised under previous GAAP.
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Currency : INR in millior)

7 Investments
As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 | st April 2018
Non Current
Investment carried at cost
Unquoted equity instruments
Investment in equity of subsidiaries
{a) Annik Inc, 1.00 1.00 1.00
25,000 ( 31 Mareh 2019 : 25,000) (01 April 2018: 25000) Shares Shares of Face value
usD 1
(b) Liquidhub Sp. z. 0.0. 2.40 240
Nil {31 March 2019 : 3100) (01 April 2018: 3100) Shares of Face value PLN 50
(¢) Dalian Liguidhub Consulting Services Ltd Co. 3.25 3.25 3.25
(d) Annik UK Ltd. 0.08 0.08 0.08
1000 ( 31 March 2019 : 1000) (01 April 2018: 1000) Shares of Face value GBP 1
{e) Liguidhub Pte Ltd 242 2.42 242
50,100 { 31 March 2019 : 50,100) (01 April 2018; 50,100) Shares of Face value SGD
1
Total 6.75 9.15 9.15
*Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments Rs. 6.75 (Previous Year Rs, 9.15)
8 Other financial Assets
As at As at As at
Particulars
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 | 1st April 2018
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 18.49 18.15 16.57
Fixed deposit - others 0.20 0.20 0.30
Total 18.69 18.35 16.87
9 Deferred Tax Assets (net)
T As at As at As at
s 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 |  1st April 2018
Deferred Tax Asset
Provisions - employee benefits 26,06 2770 20.95
Lease liabilities 712 5.57 3.44
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 13.27 9.45 7.88
Others 349 275 0.89
Total Deferred tax Assets 49,94 45.47 33.16
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (Refer Note no.32) 49.94 45.47 33.16
10 Income tax assets (net)
baiiliiin As at As at As at
e 5 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 |  1st April 2018
Income tax assets (net) 43.40 43.68 40,31
43.40 43,68 40,31

Total
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

{Currency : INR in millior)

Other non-current assets
As at As at As at
Particulers 21st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 |  1st April 2018
Prepaid expenses - 3.65 7.06
Capital advances - 0.40 -
Total - 4.05 7.06
Trade receivables (unsecured)
Particitirs As at As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
Trade receivables consists of the following -
~considered good 264.73 254.69 186.84
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables - -
Total 264.73 254.69 186.84
- Credit impaired 12.23 9.46 3.04
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables (12.23) 19.46) (3.04)
Total = - -
Grand Total 264.73 254,69 186.84

In determining the allowance for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is
adjusted for forward looking information, The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates

used in provision matrix
Trade Receivable Includes;

Dues from subsidiaries (refer note 40) 10,61 99,23 49.09
Dues from fellow subsidiary {refer note 40) 3937 6.68 303
Other Receivables 214.75 148.78 134.72
Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at
Faiticwsns 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 |  1st April 2018
Cash in hand 0.01 0.0 0.01
Balances with banks
in Current accounts 561.95 3209 254.49
Total 561.96 320.92 254.50
Other financial assets
Paicoris As at As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 | 1st April 2018
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances to employees 0.51 3.88 8.30
Other recaverables 16437
Security deposits - 0.21 047
Interest accrued on fixed depaosit 0.02 0.01 0.11
Total 164.90 4,10 8.88
Other Current Assets
As at As at As at
Bty 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019 | 1st April 2018
Prepaid expenses 9.87 10.79 2141
Unbilled revenues 7832 67.44 11.42
Balances with government authorities (GST / Service tax credit receivable) 42,73 4789 A7 41
Advances to vendors 9.38 2.34 3.58
Total 140.30 128.46 83.82




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Maotes to the standalone financlal statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

16 Share Capital

Particulars Asat As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
Mumber Amount Number Amount MNumber Amount
Equity share of Re.1/- each
Class A equity shares B,364,062 836 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 836
Equity shares other than Class A 41,635,938 41.64 41,6355938 41.64 41,635,938 41.64
Total 50,000,000 50L00 50,000,000 5000 50,000,000 50,00
Class A Equiity Share of Re. 1/~ each
Opening 8,364,062 8.36 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 836
Additions - - - - - -
Deletions - - o - - -
Closing (a) 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 836
Equity Shares other than Class A of Re. 1/- each
Opening 41,635,938 41,64 41,635,938 4164 41,635,938 4164
Additions - - - - - -
Deletions = = a = = =
Clasing (b) 41,635,938 41.64 41,635,938 41.64 41,635,938 4164
Total (a+b) 50,000,000 50.00 50,000,000 50.00 50,000,000 50.00
Issued
Ecjuity Share of Re.1/- each
Class A Equity Shares B,364,062 B.36 8,364,062 8.36 B,364,062 B.36
Eqquity Shares other than Class A 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 28.98 26,981,623 26,98
Tatal 37,345,685 3734 37,345,685 3734 37,345,685 37.34
a: Ii f -
Opening 8,364,062 8.36 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 836
Additions « - - % = =
Deletions - - - - - -
Closing (a) 8,364,062 .36 8,364,062 B.36 8,364,062 #36
Equity Shares other than Class A of Re. 1/- each
Opening 28,981,623 268.98 28,981,623 28,98 28,981,623 28.98
Additions = = = - = -
Deletions - - - % - Z
Closing (b) 28,961,623 28.98 28,981,623 28.98 28,981,623 28.98
Total (a+h) 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34
Subscribed and fully pald up
Equity Share of Re.1/- each
Class A Equity Shares 8,364,062 B.36 8,364,062 8.36 8,364,062 836
Equity Shares other than Class A 28,981,623 28.98 28,981,623 28.98 28,981,623 28.98
Total 37,345,685 37.35 37,345,685 37.35 37,345,685 3734
Class A Equity Share of Re. 1/- each
Opening 8,364,062 8.36 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 836
Additions - - - - « -
Delations = = = - = -
Closing (a) 8,364,062 8.36 8,364,062 B.36 8,364,062 8.36
Equity Shares other than Class A of Re. 1/- eac
Opening 28,981,623 28.98 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 28.98
Additions - - - - - -
Deletions S = = - T -
Closing (b) 28,981,623 28.98 28,981,623 28.98 208,981,623 2698
Total {a+b) 37,345,685 17.34 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34
Total 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34

161 1he rights, preference and restrictions attached to each class of shares including restrictions an the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital are as
unler :

The company vide Special Resolution dated 27.09.2018 , allered its Articles of Association and remaoved restriction with regard to payment of dividend to Class A
shares. Accordingly , issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company has been reclassified and rank pari passu.

The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

16.2 The following hold mere than 5% in equity shares of the company

Name of Shareholder Class As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2012 As at 1st April 2018
Mo. of Shares | % of Holding | Mo. of Shares | % of Holding | Mo. of Shares | % of Holding
held held held

Rahul Sahgal A - = - »: 8,364,062 2240
Licjuidhub Inc Other than A ~ - - - 28,981,623 77.60
Capgemini America Inc, A . - 2364061 CEn - =

Other than A = = 28,981,623 77,60 - -
Capgemini Technology Senvices India A B,364,061 2240 = = * =
Private Limited Other than A 28,961,623 77.60 - = - T
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Lease liabilities

(Currency : INR in million)

Particulars As at As at As at

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019| 1st April 2018
Non-Current
Long term maturities of finance lease obligations* 183.69 206.84 228.91
Total 183.69 206.84 228.91
Provisions
Particulars As at As at As at

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019| 1st April 2018
Mon-Current
Provision for employee benefits*
Gratuity (unfunded) (refer note no 33) 62.63 50.80 4295
Compensated absences (unfunded) (refer note no 33) 14.31 1243 9.99
Share Based Payments Liabilities (refer note no 45) 317 - -
Total 80.11 63.23 52.94
Trade and other payables

. As at As at As at

Paricuiars 31st March 2020 31st March 2018|  1st April 2018
Due to micro and small enterprises parties (refer note No.44) 0.24 - -
Due to other than micro and small enterprises parties 169.56 69.47 45.36
Total 169.80 69.47 45.36

Trade payable includes Rs 23.60 millions (Rs. 15.06 millions in March 2019 and Rs. 1B.35 millions in April 2018 )due to

Subsidiary companies.

Trade payable includes Rs 132.95 millions(PY Rs.17.46 millions in March 2019 and Rs.2.83 millions in April 2018 )due to

Fellow Subsidiary companies.

Trade payable includes Rs. 8.71 millions (PY Rs. 19.53 millions in March 2019 and Rs.10.84 millions in April 2018)due to

Holding company.

Lease liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 | 1st April 2018
Current
-Current maturities of finance lease obligations 2661 23.15 22.07
Total 26.61 23.15 22.07
Other financial liabilities (current)
Dk i As at As at As at
AROES 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019| 1st April 2018
Man Trade Payables to Others 777 772 7.74
Employee Payables 36.76 33.94 36.75
Expense Payables 30.53 10.12 4.35
Total 75.06 51.78 48.84
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Other Current Liabilities

{Currency : INR in million)

As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2020| 31st March 2019| 1st April 2018
Unearned revenue 30.74 4.02 3.57
Advances from customers - 397 0.39
Statutory dues payable* 23.36 15.14 26.28
Total 54.10 23.13 30.24
*Statutory dues payable comprises of -
Goods and services tax payable 1.54 5.91 1.79
Tax deducted at source payable 16.34 5.94 19.68
Provident fund payable 5.44 3.16 4.62
Profession tax payable 0.01 0.01 -
Employees state insurance payable 0.03 012 0.19
Total 23.36 15.14 26.28
Provisions (current)

As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019| 1st April 2018
Provision for employee benefits*:
Gratuity (unfunded) (refer note no 33) 1.29 0.94 0.79
Compensated absences (unfunded) (refer note no 33) 0.31 0.3 0.24
Total 1.60 1.25 1.03
Income tax liabilities (net)

Particul As at As at As at

ol 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019| 1st April 2018

Provision for Income Tax(net of Advance Tax) 471 0.53 0.02
Total 4.71 0.53 0.02




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

25 Revenue from Operations

(Currency : INR in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Rewvenue from software operations 1,352.34 1,262.18
Total 1,352.34 1,262.18

Revenue from software services includes Rs.13.68 (previous year Rs. Nil) towards out of pocket expenses reimbursed by the

customers.
Disaggregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by contract type and geography :

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Revenue by contract type :
Time & material contracts 845.27 739.66
Fixed price contracts 503.96 520.04
Fixed price maintenance contracts in 2.48
Total 1,352.34 1,262.18
Revenue by geography:
America 1,205.97 1,120.60
Europe 18.00 21.18
India 89.31 110.35
Rest of the world 39.06 10.05
Total 1,352.34 1,262.18
Reconciliation of revenue recognized with the contracted price is as follows:
Contracted price 1,359.39 1,268.72
Discounts 7.05 6.54
Revenue recognised 1,352.34 1,262.18

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at 31 March 2020 is Rs 486.06(31
March 2019 : Rs 896.5), Out of this, the Company expects to recognize revenue of around 70.11%(31 March 2019 : 45.78%) within
the next one year and the remaining thereafter.

The Company has presented contract assets as "Unbilled revenues” in Other current assets and "Unearned revenues” in Other
current liabilities in the balance sheet. The table below gives changes in contract assets and liabilities during the year

31-Mar-20
Contract assets Contract liabilities
Opening balance 67.44 {4.02)
Revenue recognised during the year 7832 4.02
Increase due to invoices raised during the year (67.44) (30.74)
Closing balance 78.32 (30.74)
31-Mar-19
Contract assets Contract liabilities
Opening balance 11.42 (3.57)
Revenue recognised during the year 67.44 3.57
Increase due to invoices raised during the year (11.42) (4.02)
Closing balance 67.44 (4.02)

The Company has determined the revenue billed during the year on a FIFO basis to arrive at the "Increase due to invoices raised

during the year”.
26 Other income, net
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Interest on deposits with banks 0.01 0.01
Interest Income on Others (at amartized cost) 1.49 137
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 4515 13.96
Profit on sale of non-current investments* 34.45 -
Other Miscellaneous Income 0.25 -
Balances Written back - 10.84
Total 81.35 26.18

* In the current year, the Company sold its investment in Liquidhub Sp. z. 0.0, ta Capgemini Polska Sp Z.0.0. on 19 July 2019. The
Company received consideration of Rs. 36.86 and recognised profit on sale of Rs. 34.45.




Liguidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Currency ; INR in million)

27 Employee benefits expense
Barticul For the year ended For the year ended
v 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Salaries, bonus and incentives 640.10 603.80
Contribution to provident and other funds 3275 19.48
Retirement benefits expense (refer note no 33) 13.76 11.94
Compensated absences (refer note no 33) 372 4,61
Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 45) EER "
Staff welfare expenses 4.85 12.44
Total 698.49 652.27
28 Finance Costs
Paiikiiars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Interest on:
lease liability 17.24 19,23
Others 0.40 0.25
Total 17.64 19.48
29 Depreciation and amortization
B iniling For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 59.23 58.90
Amartisation of intangible assets 1.89 2,72
Total 61.12 61.62
30 Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
Farticular 315t March 2020 315t March 2019
Rent 0.11 0.40
Repair & Maintenance
-Computers 2.82 4.80
-Others 0.05 0.05
-Office Maintenance 32.12 28.45
Insurance 0.56 0.96
Rates & Taxes 0.15 0.09
Communication Expenses 3.26 6.57
Software and hardware Expenses 28,70 17.60
Allowance for debt receivables 277 6.42
Power and fuel 8.78 8.73
Advertisement and sales promotion 2.46 15.22
Travelling & Conveyance 48.46 59.23
Stationery and printing expenses 0.47 0.22
Legal and professional charges 19,97 24.69
Prepaid rent amortization expenses 0.48 048
Group management fee 11.19 218
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 43) 4.05 298
Miscellaneous expenses 8.12 7.82
Sub-contracting expenses 168.63 192.51
Bank charges and other financial expenses 1.10 118
Training and recruitment 4.55 3.96
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment (net) 0.63 0.04
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility initiatives (Refer note 46) 253 212
Total 351.96 386.70
31|Statement of other comprehensive income For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of Profit and
Loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net} {0.41) 0.52
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to n.12 -
statement of Profit and Loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss - -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified subsequently to 0.27 0.05

Statement of Profit and Loss
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

32 Tax expenses

(Currency : INR in million)

Income tax exp recog d in Stat 1t of Profit and Loss: 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
A|Current income tax
Current tax expense for current year 7274 48.27
Current tax expense / (benefit) pertaining to prior years 233 0.20
B|Deferred income tax

Deferred tax charge / (credit) (4.35) {12.46)
Tax expense for the year 70.72 36.01
Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income:
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax

benefit benefit
Iterns that will not be reclassified
subseguently to Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit (0.41) 012 {0.29) 052 (0.15) 037
plans
(0.41) 0.12 (0.29) 0.52 (0.15) 0.37

Particulars 31-Mar-20 3i-Mar-19
Profit before tax 304,48 168,29
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate of
29.12% for both years BA.66 49.01
Tay Effect of;
Tax effect due to income tax holidays (23.21) {15.50)
Tay effect due to Deduction under chapter VI-A (0.37) (037)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 19.45 1812
Income taxes relating to prior years 233 0.20
Others (16.15) (15.51)
Total income tax expense 70.72 36.01
Effective Tax Rate 23.23 21.40

Under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1961, the Campany 1s eligible to claim income tax haliday on profits derived from the export of software services from
divisions registered under Special Economic Zone ("SEZ") 2005 scheme. Profits derived from the export of software services from these divisions registered
under the SEZ scheme are eligible for a 100% tax holiday during the initial five consecutive assessment years, followed by 50% for further five years and 50%
of such profits or gains for the balance period of five years subject to fulfilment of certain conditions, from the date of commencement of operations by the
respective SEZ units. The impact of tax holiday units resulted in tax benefit of 23.21 millions and 155 millions for current and previous year respectively.
This tax relief holiday will begin to expire from FY 2012-13 through FY 2021-22

Income tax assets and liabilities 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18

Income tax assets (net) 4340 4368 4031

Income tax liabilities (net) 4.71 0.53 0.02

Movement in deferred tax balances

Particulars Net balance Recognised in | Recognised in Net balance
April 1, 2013 Statement of ocl March 31, 2020
Profit and Loss

Deferred Tax Asset

Provisions - employee benefits 27.70 (1.76) 012 2606

Lease liabilities 5.57 1.55 712

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 9.45 3.82 1327

Others Z75 0.74 349

Total Deferred tax Assets 45.47 4.35 0.12 49.94

Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 45.47 4.35 0.12 49,94

Movement in deferred tax balances

Particulars Met balance | Recognised in | Recognised in Net balance
April 1, 2018 Statement of ocl March 31, 2019
Profit and Loss

Deferred Tax Asset

Provisions - employee benefits 20.95 690 0.15) 27.70

Lease liabilities 344 213 - 557

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 7.88 1.57 945

Others 0.89 1.86 - 2.75

Total Deferred tax Assets 33.16 12.46 {0.15) 45.47

Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 33.16 12.46 (0.15) 45.47

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if, and only if, it has a legally enfarceable right to set off tax liabilities against tax assets. The Company has no
taw losses which arose in India that are available for offset against future taxable profits,
Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of
deferred income tax assets, The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of future taxable income by each jurisdiction in which the
relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered,
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

Employee benefit plans
G. Gratuity benefits

The Company operates a post employment benefit plan that provides for gratuity benefit ta eligible employees. The gratuity plan
entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous services, to receive one-hall month's salary for each year
of completed service at the time of retirement / exit

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
position of assets and obligations relating to the plan.

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Amount to be recognised in balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 63,93 51.74 43,75
Fair value of plan assets - - -
MNet Liahi]ity 63,93 51.74 43.75
Amounts in the Balance Sheet:
Liabilities Current 1.29 0.94 0.79
MNan-current 62.64 50.80 42.95
Present Value of defined benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year

51.74 43.75 38.55

Current service cost 9.80 8.52 7.76
Interest cost 396 3.41 2.83
Benefits paid (1.98) (3.42) (3.22)
Actuarial (gains) / losses 0.41 {0.52) (2.17)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year (A) 63.93 51.74 43.75
Fair Value of plan asset
Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of the year
Cantributions by employer - -
Expected return - - -
Actuarial gains % -
Benefits paid =
Fair Value of plan assets at end of the year (B) - - -
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet (A-B) 63.93 51.74 43.75
Included in OCI
Opening amount recognised in OCI outside Profit & Lass Ajc- 041) 0.53 317
Demographic assumptions 0.01
Financial assumptions 7.24 (0.47) (3.22)
Experience adjustment (6.84) (0.05) 1.05
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - = -

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 9.80 8.52 7.76
Interest cost 3.96 N 2.83
Expected return on plan assets E: # il
Total included in “Employee benefit expenses” 13.76 11.93 10.59

Return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assets -
Actuarial gain -
Actual return on plan assets




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Category of Assets % %

Government debt instruments 0% 0%

Insurer managed funds 0% 0%

Others 0% 0%
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

The principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity benefit are shown below:

Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%

Discaunt rate 6.85% 7.66%

Expected rate of return on plan assets

The estimalas of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the
long term yield on government bonds. Assumptions regarding future mortality are based an published statistics and mortality
tables.

Sensitivity analysis

Reasanably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below,

As of 31 March 2020, every 0.5 percentage point increase / (decrease) in discount rate will result in (decrease) / increase of gratuity
benefit obligation by approximately Rs. (-4.69) and Rs 5.17 respectively.

As of 31 March 2020 every 0.5 percentage point increase/ (decrease) in expected rate of salary will result in increase / (decrease) of
gratuity benefit ebligation by approximately Rs. 5.14 and Rs. (-4.71 Jrespectively.

The Defined Benefit Obligation shall mature after year ended 31 March 2020 as follows - Year Ending March 31

2021 1.29
2022 1.22
2023 1.18
2024 1.44
2025 1.10
2026 1.06
2027 Onwards 56.63

H. Compensated Absences:
Compensated Absences as at the Balance sheet date, determined on the basis of actuarial valuation based on the “projected unit
credit method” is as below:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Current provisions 031 0.31 0.24
Non-current provisions 14.31 12.43 2.99
14.62 12.74 10.23
Actuarial Assumptions % p.a. % p.a. % p.a.
Discount rate 6.85% 7.66% 7.80%
Salary escalation rate 7% 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rates
Age (years)
Upto 30 Years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Segment Reporting

(Currency : INR in million)

The Company prepares the standalone financial statement alang with the consolidated financial statements, In accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating
Segments, since the Company has disclosed the segment information in the consolidated financial statements, disclosures are not required in this

standalone financial statements.

Leases

In accordance with IND AS-116 on Leases the following disclosures in respect of leases is made as under.-

The carrying amount of Right of use- Office Premises at the end of the reporting

Particulars For the year ended | For thve year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Depreciation charge for Right of use- Office Premises 32.04 31.95
Interest expense on lease liabilities; 17.24 19.23
The expenses relating to short-term leases a1 0.40
Total cash outflow for leases including cash outflow for short term leases ; 42.32 41.70
Additions to right-of-use assets; 1.82 -
149.58 179.80

36

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for office premises taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course.
The Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following table reflects the profit and share data used to compute basic and diluted EPS:

For the year ended

For the year ended

37

38

39

Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Praofit attributable ta equity shareholders 23347 132,65
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS (nos.)-Class A 8,364,062 5,774,641
Weighted average number of equity shares in caleulating basic EPS (nos.}-Other than Class A 28,981,623 28,981,623
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS (nos.)-Class A 8,364,062 5,774,641
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS (nos.)-Other than Class A 28,981,623 28,981,623
Basic earning per share of face value of Rs.1/- each 6.25 382
Diluted earning per share of face value of Rs.1/- each 6.25 3.82
Value of Import on CIF basis(on accrual basis)
: For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Capital goods 15.14 145
Expenditure in Foreign Currency on account of:
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Travelling expenses 977 26.10
Operation & other Cost 207.80 24333
Technology cost 20,68 5.88
Selling and marketing expenses 9.35 15.56
Total 247.60 290.87
Earning in Foreign Exchange from(on accrual basis):
i For the year ended | For the year ended
Fasticulrs 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Sale of Services 1,279 1,154
Total 1,279 1,154
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Related Party Transactions

Related Party Disclosures in accordance with Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures” are given below.

Names of related parties and related party relationships,

Related partiess where control exists:
Parent companies
Capgemini America, Inc, (w.e.f 31st Dec 2018 till 24th Nov 2019 )

Capgemini Technology Services India Private Limited (w.e.f, 25th Nov 2019)
Liquidhub Inc, USA (Subsidiary of Capgemini America Inc. w.e.f 07th Mar 2018 till 30th Dec 2018)

Ultimate parent company
Capgemini SE

Subsidiary Companies
-Annik Inc., USA
-LiquidHub Sp. z.0.0.,Poland (till 18th Jul 2019)
-Dalian LiquidHub Consulting Services Ltd Co,
-Annik UK LTD
-Liquidhub PTE. LTD.

Fellow subsidiaries
Liquidhub India Private Limited
Capgemini Uk Plc
Capgemini Canada Inc
Capgemini Service S.A.S.

Capgemini Technology Services India Limited (till 24th Nov 2019)

Capgemini America Inc (w.e.f. 25th Nov 2019)
Capgemini Ireland Limited

Capgemini Deutschland Gmbh

Capgemini North America, Inc.

Capgemini Polska Sp Z.0.O

Capgemini Singapore Pte, Ltd.

Liquidhub Spz oo

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Jonathan Alfred Mark Brassington -Director
Mr. Srinivasa Rao Kandula -Director

Mr. Thierry Delaporte

-Director (till Mar 27, 2020)

(Currency : INR in million)

Mr. Sujit Sircar -Director
f Transactions with Related Parties:
S. No.|Name of the Party Nature of Nature 2019-20 2018-19 01-Apr-18
Transaction
Services Received  |Fxpenses 4,32 49,43 -
Services rendered  [Income 280.42 201.98 -
Closing Balance
1 Annik Inc. Trade Payable Liability 11.20 - 11.69
Trade Receivable Asset 10.61 99.23 49.09,
Accrued Expenses  |Liability 6.11 +
Investment Asset 1.00 1.00 1.00
Services Received Expenses 43.93 75.76 -
5 Liquidhub sp.z.0.0. Closing Balance
(Formerly known as Annik sp.z.0.0.) Trade Payable Liability 7.43 546
Investment Asset - 240 2.40,
Dalian Liquidhub Consulting Services Ltd Co. |Services Received  |Expenses 18.86 18.19 -
3 (Formerly known as Dalian Annik Consulting  |Closing Balance
Services Ltd Co.) Trade Payable Liability 4.84 1.52 1.21]
Investment Asset 3.25 3.25) 3.25
i Closing Balance
1 ABGME LD Investment iAsset U.OSI 0.08] 0.08

1\ DEL el



Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Currerucy : INR in million)

S. No.|Name of the Party Nature of Nature 2019-20 2018-19 01-Apr-18
Transaction
Services Received Expenses 9.32 9.63 =
Services rendered  |Income # o -
Closing Balance
5 LiquidHub PTE. LTD. Trade Payable Liability - 6.86 -
Accrued Expenses  |Liability 7.56 4 -
Advarice Asset - : 271
Investment Asset 242 242 242
Services Received Expenses 2.30
Services rendered  |Income 0.55 14,20
" Liquidhub India Private Limited, Closing Balance
Hyderabad Trade Payable Liability - o 2,83}
Trade Receivable Asset 0.41 3.03]
Accrued Income Asset 0.75
Services Received Expenses = -
Balances Written Income 10.84
7 Liquidhub Inc. back
Closing Balance
Accrued Expenses  |Liability % 10.84
Services Received  |Expenses 15.54 15.39 -
s Closing Balance 4
8 CapgarminE Uk Fie Trade Payable Liability 27.54 10.29 -
Accrued Expenses Liability 3.94 5.00 -
Services Received Expenses 17.71 19.53 -
Services rendered  |Income 123.13 10,02 -
Closing Balance -
Trade Payable Liability 39,75 2.21 o
9 Capgemini America Inc Accrued Expenses | Liability - 17.31 -
Trade Receivable Asset 27.84 1.27 -
Other Receivable Asset 164.37 -
Accrued Income Asset 24.69 e -
Unearned Revenue | Liability 2.94 - 5
Services Received Expenses 9.07 - -
Services rendered  |Income 17.21 3.26 -
Closing Balance -
10]  Capgemini Technology Services India Limited |Trade Payable Liability 4.12 - =
Accrued Expenses | Liability 4,59 - -
Trade Receivable Asset 2.87 3.20 -
Accrued Income Asset 1.10 0.26 -
Services rendered  |Income 1.86 -
11 Capgemini Canada Inc Closing Balance
Trade Receivable Asset 1.80 -
Services Received Expenses 13.06 2.18 -
Services rendered  |Income 0.02 - -
o . Closing Balance -
4 CApghmE e iice ShS Trade Receivable Asset 0.02 - -
Trade Payable Liability 13.97 - -
Accrued Expenses | Liability 1.87 218 %
Services rendered _ |Income 8,65 - -
. Closing Balance
H RHRGanII SNgapc R Euk Trade Receivable Asset 8.63 - -
Accrued Income Asset 0.01 - -
Services Received  |Expenses 46.53 - -
Closing Balance
14 CAPGEMINI POLSKA SP Z0.0 Trade Pgayahle Liability 2284 : 7
Accrued Expenses  |Liability 23.04 - B
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management
A, Accounting classification and fair values
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amounts at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current

transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation state.

The Company classifies its inputs used to measure fair value into the following hierarchy :

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for assets and liabilities that are not based on ohservable market data.

The fallowing table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value

hierarchy:
31-Mar-20 Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI  Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cost
Financial Assets
Other non current financial assets 18.69 1869 - - - +
Trade and other receivables 264.73 264.73 - - - '
Cash and cash equivalents 561.96 561.96 - - %
Other Current financial assets 164.90 164.90 - - #
- - 1,010.28 1,010.28 - - -
Financial Liabilities
Nan current Lease liabilities 157,08 157,08 - & # %
Trade and other payables 169.80 169.80 - - —
Current Lease liabilties 26,61 26.61 - -
Other Current financial liabilities 75.06 75.06 - - - A
- - 428.55 428.55 - - - -
31-Mar-19 Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI  Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cost
Financial Assets
Other non current financial assets 18,35 18.35 = - = -
Trade and other receivables 254.69 254.69 = i 2 e
Cash and cash equivalents 320.92 320.92 - - - i
Other Current financial assets 4.10 4.10 - - - =
- - 598.06 598.06 - - - =
Financial Liabilities
MNon current Lease liabilities 183.69 183.69 5 & o &
Trade and other payables 69.47 65947 I A . =
Current Lease liabilties 23.15 2315 - - # "
Other Current financial liabilities 51.78 51.78 - - =
- - 328.09 328.09 - - -
1-Apr-18 Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cost
Financial Assets
Other non current financial assets 16.87 16.87 - - - ”
Trade and other receivables 186.84 186.84 = = = "
Cash and cash equivalents 254.50 254.50 - - = r
Other Current financial assets 8.88 8.88 = 2 2 5
- - 467.09 467.09 - - -
Financial Liabilities
Mon current Lease liabilities 206.84 206.84 - = » p
Trade and other payables 45.36 45,36 = = = &
Current Lease liabilties 22.07 22.07 - - §
Other Current financial liabilities 48.84 48.84 - - d
& - 323.11 323.11 B & i

(1) Assets that are not financial assets (such as receivables from statutory authorities, prepaid expenses, advances paid and certain other receivables)
amounting to Rs 147,05 , R5.137.61 and Rs.92.97 as of March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively, are not included.

(2) Other liabilities that are not financial liabilities {such as statutory dues payable, deferred revenue, advances from customers and certain other
accruals) amounting to Rs, 55.70 Rs.24.38 and Rs.31.27 as of March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, respectively, are not included.




Liguidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk ;

- Liquidity risk ; and

-Market risk etc

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities,

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Trade and other receivables
The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of its customers, taking into account the financial conditions, current economic

trends and analysis of historic bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery from the customer,

The Company has trade receivables primarily from intercompanies for which it does not foresee any credit risk.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other
receivables. Qut of the total trade and other receivables of Rs. 276.96 , Rs. 264.15 and Rs. 189.88. as of 31 March 2020, 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2018 respectively, the Company has receivables which are past due and impaired as detailed below -

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Balance at the beginning of the year 9.46 3.04
Impairment loss recognised 2.77 6.42
Impairment provision written back - s
Balance at the end of the year 12.23 9.46
ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and
undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

Carriin One year but
31-March-20 ving Within one year not more than
amount
five years
Non current financial liabilities 23719 23719
Current financial liabilities 101.67 101.67
Trade and other payables 169.80 169.80
Contractual cash flows
Carriil One year but
31-March-19 e Within one year not more than
amount
five years
Non current financial liabilities 246,92 246.92
Current financial liabilities 7493 7493
Trade and other payables 6947 69.47




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

01-April-18
Non current financial liabilities
Current financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

iii. Market risk

Carrying
amount
259.78

7091
45.36

(Currency : INR in million)

Contractual cash flows

One year but
Within one year not more than
five years
259,78
7091
45.36

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial
instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily
related to foreign exchange rate risk . The exposure to market risk is a function of investing activities and revenue generating and
operating activities in foreign currency. The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in foreign currency

revenues and costs.

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020, 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is as below:

Foreign currency exposures as on 31 March 2020

Particulars

usb
EUR
GRP
PLN

Cash and cash
equivalents

519.14
0.06

Foreign currency exposures as on 31 March 2019

Particulars

UsD
EUR
SGD
GBP

Cash and cash
equivalents

298.13
0.05

Foreign currency exposures as on 31 March 2018

Particulars

usp
EUR
SGD
GBP

*excludes allowance for doubtful receivables

Cash and cash
equivalents

245.98
0.06

Trade
receivables*

205.86
0.24
0.60

Trade
receivables*

229.09
0.00

Trade
receivables*

148.64
6.83
271

0.00

Other non
current
financial Trade Other financial
liabilities Payables liabilities
58.35
13.97
27.54
22.84
Other non
current
financial Trade Other financial
liabilities Payables liabilities
11.38
6.86
10.29
Other non
current
financial Trade Other financial
liabilities Payables liabilities
18.35
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency ; INR in million)

42 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2020 S1st March 2019
- Bank Guarantees - -
- Income Tax Demand 2 7.16
There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court {SC) judgement dated February 28, 2019 on Provident Fund (PF) on the inclusion of
allowances for the purpose of PF cantribution as well as its applicability of effective date. The Company is evaluating and seeking legal inputs regarding various
interpretative issues and its impact.

43 Auditors’ remuneration

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Statutory audit 2.80 1.80
Tax audit 0.30 0.35
Other services 0.70 0.70
Out of pocket expenses 0.25 013
Total 4.05 2.98

44 Details of dues to micre and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
The Company has amounts due to suppliers under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED Act) as at 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2019. The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the micro and
small enterprises should mentian in their correspondence with its customers the entrepreneur's memorandum number as allocated after filing of the memorandum.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 has been made in the financial statements based on the
information received and available with the Company.

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Principal amount remaining unpaid 018 :
Interest due thereon 0.06 0.00
The amount of Interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed - -
day
The amount of Interest due and payable for the year 0.06 0.00
The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid 0.06 0.00
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues & -
as above are actually paid

Dues to Micre and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management.
This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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Employee stock compensation plans

Capgemini SE, the ultimate holding company has approved allocation of performance shares of Capgemini SE to the employees of Capgemini India
Private Limited (transferor company) and its French and non French subsidiaries' employees. These shares have been allocated to the employees under
plans as detailed below. The grant of the above performance and employment linked shares relate to the share capital of the holding company and shall
have no impact on the share capital of the subsidiary companies whose employees are also entitled to the share allocation. The Company recagnised
compensated expense for these awards using the fair value method,

The status of the plans have been summarised below -

Particulars 2019 Plan 2018 Plan
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Grant date 02-Oct-19 " 03-Oct-18 03-Oct-18
Performance assessment dates Three years for the two -|  Three years for the two  Three years for the
performance conditions perfarmance conditions  two performance
conditions

Vesting period

4 years as from the grant
date

4 years as from the grant
date
1,000

4 years as from
the arant date

Total numbers of options =
outstanding at opening date
Tatal numbers of options granted
during the year

Options exercised - -
Options exercised »
QOptions forfeited or canceled - =
during the vear
Options unexercised -
Options lapsed = 4
Total number of options
outstanding at closing date
Charge for the year S =

1,000 - - 1,000

During the current and previous year, Capgemini SE, the ultimate parent company, has set up an employee share ownership plan, where eligible
employees of the Company are invited to subscribe to the shares of the ultimate parent company at a discount of 12.5% to the current market price of
the ultimate parent company shares. The grant of the above shares relate to the share capital of the ultimate parent company and shall have no impact
on the share capital of the subsidiary companies whose employees are also entitled to subscribe to the share allocation. The Company recognised
campensation expense for these awards using the fair value method.

Valuation was done by the parent company using the below mentioned assumptions. The status of the plans have been summarised below -

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Charge for the year 0.14 -*

Movements during the year for employee share purchase plan is a below:
ESOP 2019 ESOP 2018

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Grant date 12-Nov-19 - 12-Nov-18 12-Nov-18

Base price (in euros) 105.45 - 105.46 105.46

Subscription price (in euros) 9227 - 92.28 92.28

Par value discount (%) 12.50 - 12.50 12.50

Total number of shares subscribed 376 - 397 397

0.03 - 011 -*

Charge for the year (INR in Lakhs)
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Detail of CSR Expenditure

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has identified areas including activities for promoting programs that benefit the comimunities
in and around the Company's work centre and further results in enhancing the quality of life and economic well being of the local populace, express
commitment to the sacial development through responsible business practices and good governance, engage with state and its agencies in pursuing the
development agenda for sustainable change for its CSR activities. These areas will be pursued in phases and in a manner aligned with the C5R rules and
regulations. The funds have baen contributed to trusts/organisations involved in the above activities and will be utilized on the activities which are specified
in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The gross amount required to be spent by the Company on CSR activities is Rs. 2.53 (31 March 2019 Rs. 2.67).
The total expenditure incurred on ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Activities' for the current year is Rs. 2.53 (31 March 2019 Rs, 2.12)

Amount spent during the year on

i For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2020
(i Construction / acquisition of any asset (31st Mar 2019-Rs. Nil) %
(i) CSR Programs (31 March 2019 Rs. 2,12)
Education and vocational training projects 253
Total 2.53

Balance amount to be spent by the company ; Nil
Overdue receivables for export services:

As on 31 March 2020, the Company has fareign currency receivables amounting to Rs. 3.22 (31 March 2019: Rs. 5.51) which is outstanding for a period
exceeding nine menths fram the invoice date. As per the RBI Master Circular No. 14/2015-16 on Export of Goods and Services updated on 16 July 2015, "It
is obligatory on the part of the exporter to realize and repatriate the full value of goods or services to India within a period of nine months from the date of
export’. The export proceeds against these dues have not been repatriated within the stipulated period under the FEMA Rules and Regulations.
Management does not expect any penalties/levies in this regard as it has already filed for extension of time for collecting the dues of Rs. 3.22 (31 March
2019: Rs. 5.51) with authorised dealer and is awaiting confirmation,

Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of Information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under
sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961, Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature,
the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the
financial year and expects such records ta be in existence latest by November 2019 as required under law. The management is of the opinion that its
international transactions are at arm's length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the
amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation,

During the year, Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited, the holding company has sold Liquidhub SP Z.0.0 (wholly owned subsidiary) to Capgemini Polska Sp.
z 0.0 and sale consideration for the same was received on 19th July, 2019 which has been treated as date of sale / transfer.

During the year, Annik UK Limited has filed for liquidation on 17th December, 2015. However, the same is pending subject to approvals from authorities
and the entity is legally active as on 31st March 2020

Other Notes:

In the opinion of the management, the value on realization of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than
the amaount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all known liabilities has been made.

Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to confirm this year's classification.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For § § Kothari Mehta 8t Company Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
[Chartered Accountants) = T
Firm Regn. No. 000756M A
¢ 4 N\
s/ AL
Drigitally sigred by | |
YOGESH YS’G‘E“SH :(SMAR { N -"\'\!l DT'“k !Il f =1
KUMAR: /e (o ™5 £ SRINIVASA S o SUIT | S
GUPTA 20:23:27 +05'30" . /& BAD MDA e = SIRCAR  iedid
(Vogesh K. Gupta) e, SN0 (Srinivasa Rao Kandula) (Sujit Sircar)
Partner SJEDAGUE Director Director
(M Nao. : 093214) (DIN : 07412426) (DIN : D0026417)

Plece ; FrR)D BBOD CHalv O1P)

Poks: TUNE 284, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIQUIDHUB ANALYTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Liquidhub
Analytics Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise
the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated Statement of Changes in equity,
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS

financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2020, and of consolidated profit (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAI"), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

Flot Mo, 88, Oknda inglustnal Arga, Phnsd-11, New Dathi- 110020
Tel: +51:11-4670 BAAA E-mail: Info 8 sskmin. com v BRI AL E e
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Information Other than the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for preparation of
the other information. The Other information does not include the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements
of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated
profit/loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section
133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective management and Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of
the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Holding company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infopf
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Qo sgflﬂaﬁ%gipiil
o Hna:

AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and pérformance gT /
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the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢)The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, and the
Consolidated statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder;

e)On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the

Holding Company, none of the directors of the Holding Company is disqualified-as on

March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 64 ' §3\;\
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure "A”;

g) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
based on examination of the records of the Holding Company, the Holding Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements have no impact of pending
litigations as at March 31, 2020 on the financial position of the Group — Refer
Note 37 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

i. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on its long-term
contracts, the Group did not have any long-term derivative contracts; and

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor
Education & Protection Fund by the Holding company.

For § S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 000756N
YOGESH e o e
KUMAR GUPTA 0 eeesessaiimes

Yogesh K. Gupta

Partner

Membership No. : 093214

UDIN: 20093214AAAABG4714
Place: Faridabad (Haryana)
Date: June 23, 2020
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“Annexure A" to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements of LIQUIDHUB ANALYTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“"the Act”) as referred to in paragraph f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consclidated Ind AS financial
statements of Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of March 31st,
2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

The audit of internal financials controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements
is applicable only to the Holding Company.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on the
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

NEW DELHI | £
;’ x|
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls system with
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies

or procedures may deteriorate. o
A AMEHTA 2
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial contrals with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with reference to consolidated Ind
AS financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For §S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000756N

YOGE SH Digitally signed by

YOGESH KUMAR

KUMAR GLIPTA
Date: 2020.06.23

GUPTA 21:58:16 +05'30'

Yogesh K. Gupta
Partner
Membership No.:093214

UDIN: 20093214AAAABG4714

Place: Faridabad (Haryana)
Date: June 23, 2020
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

[Currency : INR in million)
Particulars Note As at As at As at

Na. 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18

Assets
Non - Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 48.80 56,73 73.61
Right to use of assets 4 149.59 187.69 228.17
Intangible Assets 5 146 2.54 5.58
Financial Assets

Other financial assets 6 263.56 21.35 18,74
Deferred tax assets (net) 7 4994 4547 33.16
Income tax assets (net) 8 4340 4369 4043
Other non-current assets 9 - 4.05 7.06
Total Non-Current assets 556.75 361.52 406.75
Current assets
Financial Assets

Trade receivables 10 42925 332.04 326.83

Cash and cash equivalents il 618.75 934,54 368.55

Other financial assets 12 167.00 465 12.01
Other current assets 12 466.08 240.31 107.14
Total Current assets 1,681.08 1.511.54 814.53
Total Assets 2,237.83 1,873.06 1,221.28
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 14 37.34 3734 37.34
Other Equity 1,427.57 710.64 675.30
Total equity 1,464.91 747.98 712.64
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Lease liabilities 15 157.08 183.69 215.96
Provisions 16 80.12 63.23 52.85
Total non-current liabilities 237.20 246.92 268.91
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 17

-Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.24 - -
-Due to other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 241.60 687,11 7298

Lease liabilities 18 26.61 3227 30.95

Other financial liabilities 19 76.55 7328 86.14
Dther current liabilities 20 94.68 50.64 36.86
Provisions 21 1.60 1.25 1.03
Income tax liabilities (net) 22 94.44 3381 TERT
Total current liabilities 535.72 B78.16 239.73
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,237.83 1.873.06 1,221.28

The accampanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached =

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For S § Kothari Mehta & Company Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 000756N

YOGESH R e B yoe SRINIVASA ~ Sosbvssear Sk

KUMAR GU PTA :J;:;;nm.nn}: 202818 BAQ KANDULA ?:;:mu PIFIE SIRCAR st
(Yogesh K. Gupta) (Srinivasa Rao Kandula ) (Sujit Sircar)
Partner Director Director

(M No. : 093214) (DIN : 07412426) (DIN : 00026417}
Place: FARADABAD CN oy erA) Flace:

bate: JUNE 2377, 2020 Date:




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March , 2020
(Currency : INR in million)
Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Income
Revenue from operations 23 3011.25 2,967.98
Other income, net 24 7198 27.58
Total Income 3,083.23 2,995.56
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 25 79774 798.25
Finance costs 26 18.01 20,63
Depreciation and amortization expenses 27 7370 7770
Other expenses 28 1.366.36 186143
Total expenses 225581 2,858.01
Profit before tax 827.42 137.55
Tax Expenses
- Current tax 13532 12062
- Deferred tax 7 (4.35) (12.46)
-Tax of earier year provided / (written back) 233 366
Total Tax Expenses 133.30 111.82
Profit for the Year 694.12 25.73
Other comprehensive {loss) / income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net) (041) 052
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss 0.12 0.,5)
B (i) tems that will be reclassified subsequently to Cansalidated statement of
Profit and Loss
Exchange ditference on translation of foreign operations 2297 9.24
Income tax refating to items that will be reclassified subsequently to
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss =
Total other comprehensive (loss) / i net of tax 22.68 9.61
Total comprehensive income for the year 716.80 35.34
Profit attributable to
Owners of the company 694.12 2573
Total Comprehensive incame attributable to
Owners of the company 716.80 3534
Earnings per equity share : 34
Nominal value of Share Rs. 1 {31st March 201%: Rs.1)
- Basic (In Rs.)-Other than Class & and Class A 1813 1.02
- Diluted  (In Rs.)-Other than Class A and Class A 1819 102
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consclidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For § § Kathari Mehta & Company Liguidhub Analytics Private Limited
{Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. Mo. 000756M
o Dimgirally skgnied dry " i
YOGESH oteasomancuers SRRNASA  Jmeemens  SUNT esyast
KUMAR GUPTA Date. a0z000.4 e SIRCAR T ot
(Yogesh K. Gupta) (Srinivasa Rao Kandula ) (Sujit Sircar)

Partner Director Director
(M No.: 093214) (DIN : 07412426) (DIN : D0026417)

Place:
Date:

place: FORI\DABAD CHMYW#J
Date FYNE 2_3&4' 2020




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
lidated cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020

Statement of ¢

{Currency : INR in million)

Parti For the year ended For the year ended
articulars
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year T16.94 3534
Adjustment for;
Depreciation and amertisation expenses 7370 770
Tax expenses 13318 111.87
Interest expense an lease liability 17.61 20.38
Other interest expenses 0.40 025
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 10.27 [0.24)
(Profit)/loss on sale / disposal of assets (net) 0.75 0.04
Bad Debts Written back (0.26) -
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 683 3536
Provisions no longer required written back - [11.0<)
Prepaid rent amortisation 0.48 048
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (Exceptional Item) (10.04)
Interest on deposits with banks/other (6.35) (0.07)
Interest income on others {1.57) (1.46)
Operating profit before working capital changes 930.80 268.77
Increase / (decrease) in Long - Term Barrowings
Increase / (decrease) in Trade and other payable (445.82) 61491
Increase / (decrease) in non current provisions 16.89 10.28
Increase / (decrease) in Other financial liabilities 327 (1.82)
Increase / (decrease) in Other current liabilities 44.04 13.78
Increase / (decrease) in Provisions 035 022
[ Increase ) / decrease in Non current assets 405 341
[ Increase ) / decrease in Other non current financial assets (240.64) (1.25)
[ Increase } / decrease in other current Financial assets (162.34) 7.26
( Increase ) / decrease in other current assets (226.25) (133.65)
{ Increase ) / decrease in Trade receivables (102.96) [41.17)
Cash g i from op (178.61) 740.80
Taxes Paid (net of refund) (76.53) (105.70)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (255.14) 635.10

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purfhase of property, plant and equipment including intangible assets (Including (26.18) (16.71)
capital advances)
Sale / (Purchase) of Investments(Net) 10.04 0.0
Interest Received 6.94 01
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.48 -
Met cash used in Investing activities (B} (7.72) (16.50)

c H FL R FINANCING A Tl
Interast paid (0.40) 0.25)
Interest paid on lease lability (17.61) {20.38)
Repayment of lease liabilities (34.91) (31.98)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (52.92) (52.61)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (315.79) 565.99
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 934.54 368.55

618.75 934.54

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

As per our report of even date attached

For § S Kothari Mehta & Company
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No. 000756N

Thaitally ygred by
YOGESH OGESH KUMAR GLFTA

KUMAR GUPTA Sate: 20200623 303307
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(Yogesh K. Gupta)
Partrner
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
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Enptilly gy by
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Directar
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Date:
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(Suljit Sircar)
Director
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE) for the year ended 31st March 2020 [Currency 1 INR in million)
!glliu Share Caw
As at Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 21 March 2018 01st April 2018
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amaount
Equity shares of 1 each issued, subscribed
and flly naiel
Opening
=Class A Equity Shares 8,364,062 i B.364,062 B 8,364,062 8
-Eqjuity Shares ather than Class A 28,981,623 29 26,981,623 29 20,981,623 29
Add: issued during the year
~Class A Equlity Shares - - = = + =
-Equity Shares other than Class A - - - - - -
Equity share capital balance at the end 37,345,685 37.35 37,345,685 37.35 37,345,685 37.35
Other Equity - For the year ended 31 March 2019
Reserves and Surplus Other Equity Non- Total Other
Comprehenst ibutable to Controlling Equity
Income Equity Interest
= shareholders of
Particulars Total the
v e differences
Premium Earnings L
of foreign
operations
Balance at 01 April 2018 14.84 4112 611,55 667.51 7.1 675.30 - 67530
Profit for the year 2573 2573 2573 = 2573
Other Comprehensive income 0ar a.37 824 g6l = 861
Total Comprehensive income for the year 26.10 26.10 924 3534 = 35.34
Bal, at 31 March 2019 14.84 41.12 637.65 693.561 17.03 710.64 & 710.64
Other Equity - For the year ended 31 March 2020
Reserves and Surplus Other Equity Non- Total Other
Comprehansi ibutable to | Controlling Equity
Income Equity Interest
Particulars Employee Total Exchange shareholders of
the
Securities Retained Stock Optian diffeconices AR
General Reserve e S Bard Plan (Holding on translation
" Reserve) of foreign
oberations
Balance at 31 March 2079 14.84 41132 63765 2 693.61 17.03 710.64 - 7064
Prafit for the year 694,12 014 f94.26 694.26 - 694,26
Other Comprehensive income (0.29) - (0.29) 2297 2268 - 2268
Total Comprehensive income for the year 693.83 0.14 693.97 2297 T6.84 - T16.94
! at 31 March 2020 14.84 41.12 1,331.48 0.14 1,387.58 39.09 1,427.57 = 1.427.57

Nature and purpose of reserves

1. General Reserve

General reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer prafits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

2. Securities Premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve will be ufilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

3. Retained Earnings

Retained eamings is the amount of net income relained by the Group afler it has pald out dividends to its shareholders,

4. diffy on of foreign of

This reserve represents the exchange differences arising from the
other than Indian rupees to reporting curmency.

5. Employees Stock Option Reserve

Capgemini SE, the ultimate parent company allocated performance shares of the group company t certain employees of the Company. The grant of such performance and emplayment linked shares relate
ta the share capital of the group company and has no impact on the Company’s share capital. The Company ines the ¢ ion cost based on grant date fair value method, This amount is
recognised in emph benefits in the of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis aver the vesting period, with a ¢ ponding adj ta Employee stock option reserve for employes

subscription plan (refer note 40)

of financial aof foreign subsidiaries with functional currency

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial st

As per aur report of even date attached
for and an behalf of the Board of Directars of

For § § Kothari Mehta & Company Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Regn. No, 000756N
Dty siger iy YIGASH SRINIVASA RAD St et i ovtn SuNT g o
YOGESH RUMAR CUPTA KANDULA i SRCAR S
KUMAR GUPTA [ acenosaiauasin i e
(Yagesh K. Gupta) {Srinivasa Rao Kandula ) {Sujit Sircar)
Partner Director Directar
(M No.: 093214) (DN - O7412426) {DIN : 000264717}
voce FPR\DBEHD LSy onh) Place
Date; Date!

JuUNE 2.3*'5, 2020
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

Corporate Overview

Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited (“the Group") is a private limited Group domiciled in India and incorporated in India under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and has its registered office at 2nd Floor, A Block, A wing, IT 1 and IT 2 Airoli Knowledge Park,
Thane Belapur Road Airoli Navi Mumbai Thane MH 400708 IN. These consolidated financial statements comprise the Group and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the 'Group').

The Group is primarily engaged in providing Information Technology ("IT") and IT - enabled operations and offshore outsourcing
solutions services to large and medium-sized organizations using an offshore/onsite model. The Group has its subsidiaries in United
States, Singapore, China & United Kingdom.

Capgemini America Inc, USA was the holding Group of LiquidHub. During the current year, Capgemini America Inc, USA has sold its
holding in the Group to Capgemini Technology Services India Limited, India (CTSIL) on November 25, 2019 and accordingly, CFSIL
became the holding Group effective such date. Capgemini SE, France is the ultimate holding Group,

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) and other relevant
provisions of the Act,

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for all the periods upto and including the year ended 31st March 2018, are prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act) and
other relevant provisions of the Act. As these are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS
has been affected the previously reported financial position and financial performance of the Group is provided in Note 03.

All amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian rupees (INR in millions) except share and per share
data, unless otherwise stated,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, which are more than 50%
owned or controlled. The financial statements of the parent company and its majority owned/ controlled subsidiaries which are drawn up
to the same reporting date have been combined on a line by line basis by adding together the book values of all items of assets,
liabilities, incomes and expenses after eliminating all intra-group balances/transactions and resulting unrealized gain/loss.

Basis of consolidation
The financial statements of the following entities in the Group are prepared using uniform accounting policies and are drawn up to the

same accounting period as that of the Group

Name of Subsidiary Country of|Voting power % as at|Voting power % as at|Voting power % as at
Incorporation |31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 01st April, 2018

Annik Inc, USA 100% 100% 100%

LiquidHub spzo.o. * Poland 0% 100% 100%

Dalian Liquidhub Consulting Services China 100% 100% 100%

Limited Company

Annik UK LTD UK 100% 100% 100%

Liguidhub PTE. LTD. Singapore 100% 100% 100%

*On 19th Jul 2019, the Company disposed of its 100% interest in Liquidhub 5P z o o for a cash consideration of 36.85 Mn.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from

its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which
Generally, there is a presumption that majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has
less than majority of voting or similar rights over an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

+The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the ather vote holders

+ Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

+ Potential voting rights held by the Group

The consolidated financial statements of the group are prepared based on a line by line combination of the separate financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries whereby the book values of like iters of assets, liabilities, income,

expenses and tax have been added

The excess of the cost to the parent of its investments in a subsidiary over the parent's portion of equity at the date on which investment
in the subsidiary is made, is recognised as 'Goodwill'. When the cost to the parent of its investment in a subsidiary is less than the parent's
portion of equity of the subsidiary at the date on which investment in the subsidiary is made, the difference Is treated as ‘Capital Reserve’
in the consolidated financial statements.




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency | INR in million)

iii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.

b) Functional currency and presentation currency
These financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Group's functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise stated.

¢) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the repaorting period. Examples of such
estimates include estimates of contract costs to be incurred to complete software development project, provision for taxes, employee
benefit plans, provision for doubtful debts and advances and estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual resulis could differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively
in current and future periods
Revenue Recognition
The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. The use of the percentage-of-
completion method requires the Group to estimate the costs expended to date as a proportion of the total costs to be expended. Efforts
or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and
praductivity.
Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based
on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.
Further, the Group uses significant judgments while determining the transaction price allocated to performance obligations using the
expected cost plus margin approach.
Taxes
The Group provides for tax considering the applicable tax regulations and based on reasonable estimates. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns giving due considerations to tax laws and establishes provisions in the event if required as a
result of differing interpretation or due to retrospective amendments, if any. The recognition of deferred tax assets is based on availability
of sufficient taxable profits in the Group against which such assets can be utilized. MAT (Minimum Alternate Tax) is recognized as an asset
only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax and will be able to utilize such credit
during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by
way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in Deferred tax assets. The Group reviews the same at each balance
sheet date and if required, writes down the camying amount of MAT credit entitiemnent to the extent there is no longer convincing
evidence to the effect that Group will be able to absorb such credit during the specified period.

Defined Benefit Plans and Compensated Absences

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates,
Due to the complexities invalved in the valuation and its lang-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Allowances for Trade Receivables

The Group follows a ‘simplified approach’ {i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables.
For the purpose of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade recelvables, the Group estimates irrecoverable amounts based on the
ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience, Further, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous
Groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not to be
collectible.

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such
assets may not be recoverable, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in millicn)

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the

use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets

a) Right to use of assets

The Group recognises right to use of assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for use).
right to use of assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right to use of assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. right to use of assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets

The right to use of assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies Impairment of non-financial assets
b) Lease Liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be

made aver the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g, changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to

purchase the underlying asset

C) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shart-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e, those leases that

have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase aption). It also applies the lease of
low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

a) Current — non-current Classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i Itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal operating cycle;

ii. itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

jii. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

Liabilities

A liability Is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i itis expected to be settled in the group's normal operating cycle;

il. itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

jii, it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. the group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its

classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, generally
twelve month is considered as operating cycle.




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)

e) Property, plant and equipment

f)

9)

h)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Trade discounts and rebates, if any, are deducted
while computing the cost.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and remaving the
item and restoring the site on which it is located, Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to
its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance,

All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repairs and maintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is disposed.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognized
as at 1 April 2018 measured as per the Previous IGAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and

equipment.

Capital work in Progress
The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use before the balance sheet date is disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment cutstanding as at balance sheet date is disclosed under Other

non-current assets

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
The Group has provided for depreciation using straight line method over the useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment as estimated

by management
The management's estimate for useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment are as below —

Gross block Useful Life

Computers* 3 years

Furpiture and fixtures® 7 years

Office equipment 7 years

Leasehold improvements lower of & years or primary period of the lease

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the
period over which management expects to use these assets.

*During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Group had re-estimated the useful life of these assets from 4 years to 7 years, the impact of
such change was not significant

Depreciation is charged on a proportionate basis from / up to the date the assets are purchased / sold during the year.
Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable value and shown

under ‘Other current assets',

A fixed asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal.
Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of Property, plant and equipment which are carried at cost are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, Computer software held for use for business purpose is amortised over an
estimated useful life of 3 - 5 years or the period of licenses, whichever is lower,

Internally developed software is capitalized when it is developed and when it is probable that the future economic benefit that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The cost of intangible assets includes
the cost of prototype testing, development cost including the cost of labour, input material and all other directly identifiable incidental
expenses attributable to bringing the assets to its working conditions.

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Gains or
losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Computer software held for use for business purpose is amortised over an estimated useful life of 3 - 5 years or the period of licenses,

whichever is lower
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency | INR in million)

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment which are not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, Other Property, plant and
equipment (tangible and intangible) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of impairment. For assets
in respect of which any such indication exists and for intangibles mandatorily tested annually for impairment, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve,

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held far not more than one year from the date on which such investments
are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. However, that part of lang
term investments which is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date Is also presented under ‘current assets’ as
‘current portion of long term investments” in consonance with the current/non-current classification scheme of Schedule Il of the Act.

Long term investments are stated at cost less other than temporary decline in the value of such investments, determined separately for
each individual investment.

Current investments are carried in financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined by category of investment. The fair value
is determined using quoted market price/market observable information adjusted for cost of dispasal. The comparison of cost and fair
value is done separately for each individual investment.

Any reductions in the carying amount and any reversals of such reductions are charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss

On disposal of the investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

The Group primarily derives revenue from rendering IT, IT related services and business process outsourcing services.

The Group adopted to apply IND AS 115 via retrospective method with restatement of March 2019 comparative figures and recognition
of the aggregate impact in equity at April 1 2018

On implementing the full retrospective method, the Group applied a number of practical expedients. Accordingly completed contracts:

-That ended before April 12018
-And/or included variabie consideration;
Were not restated for revenue recognition purposes.

The impact of the adoption of the Standard on the Consolidated financial statements of the Group is insignificant

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised praducts or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.
The method for recognizing revenue depends on the nature of the services rendered:

i.Time and material contracts
Revenue from time and material contracts is recognized over the time as the related services are rendered. Revenue from these contracts

are measured based on the number of hours spent on the contract.

ii.Fixed price contracts
Revenue from fixed-price development contracts is recognized using the percentage of completion method, under which the contract

performance is determined by relating the actual costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs for each contract. The cost incurred
{or input) method is used to measure progress as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. If the Group does not have
a sufficient basis to measure the progress of completion or to eliminate the total contract revenue and costs, revenue is recognized only
to the extent contract costs incurred, for which recoverability is probable. The related costs on deliverable- based contracts are expensed
as incurred. The Group earns contractually the right to bill upon achievement of specified milestones or upon customer acceptance of
work performed. The difference between cumulative billings and cumulative revenue recognised is reflected in the balance sheet as
contract assets or contract liabilities. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on contracts-in-progress are recorded in the period in which
such losses become probable based on the current contract estimates, Contract losses are determined to be the amount by which the
estimated incremental cost to complete exceeds the estimated future revenues that will be generated by the contract and are included in
cost of revenues and recorded in other accrued liabilities.
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fii.Fixed Price maintenance costs
Revenue on services- based contracts is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of

performance. Recurring senvices are generally considered to be one single performance obligation, comprised of a series of distinct daily
units of service satisfied over time,

iv.Others
Revenue from services rendered to parent Group, ultimate parent Group and fellow subsidiaries is recognized on cost plus mark-up basis

determined on arm's length principle as and when the related services are rendered.

Revenue on multi- deliverable contracts is recognised applying the appropriate method as specified above, depending on the
performance obligations identified.

Export incentive entitlements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established and
there is no uncertainity in receiving the same.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits, if any,
as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

A provision for onerous contracts is recorded if the unavoidable costs of fulfilling the contract exceed the related benefits

Critical Judgements
-The Group's contracts with customers may include promises to transfer multiple products and services to a customer. Identification of

distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit
independently from such deliverables.

-When multiple Performance Obligations are identified within a single contract, the Group allocates the total contract price to the
Perfarmance Obligations based on their relative Standalone Selling Price ("SSP"). In the absence of directly observable prices for similar
services sold separately to similar customers, SSPs are estimated, based on expected costs plus a margin rate commensurate with the
nature and risk of the service. Further, the Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time,

-Juclgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of
customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses,
price concessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a
significant financing component.

-Revenue for fixed-price contracts is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Group uses judgement to estimate the
future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the degree of the completion of the performance obligation.

-Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain costs which meet the criteria for capitalisation, The
assessment of this criteria requires the application of judgement, in particular when cansidering if costs generate or enhance resources to
be used to satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered.

Contract Assets and Liabilities

Contract assets are presented separately from trade receivables. Contract assets reflect revenue recognized for which the corresponding
rights to receive consideration are contingent upon something else other than the passage of time, such as the Group's future
performance, achievement of billing milestones, or customer acceptance. Accordingly, contract assets (unbilled revenue) is disclosed
under other current assets. When customer contract assets are no longer contingent, except for the passage of time, they convert into
trade receivables.

Contract liabilities represent consideration received or receivable in advance of performance or billing in excess revenue.

Contract assets and liabilities are presented on a net basis for each individual contract.

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and / or milestone based progress payments.
Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recagnized using the effective interest method.

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the

= the gross carrying amount of the financial asset, or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied on time proportion basis to the gross carrying amount of

the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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1) Foreign Currency transactions and balances
Initial recognition
The group is exposed to foreign currency transactions including foreign currency revenue, receivables, expenses and payables. Foreign

exchange transactions during the year are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss of
the year.

Translation

Manetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Nonmanetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign curency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are recagnize in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

Translation of foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations (subsidiaries) including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are

translated into INR, the functional currency of the Group, at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated into INR at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entiraty or partially such that control, significant influence or joint control
is lost, the cumulative amount of exchange differences related to that foreign operation recognised in OCI is reclassified
to the Statement of Profit and Loss as part af the gain or lass on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its interest in
a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is re-allocated to NC

m) Employee Benefits
i. Short- Term Employee Benefits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits,
These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in
exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

ii. Post- Employment Benefits

(i} Defined contribution plan

Provident fund

Employee benefits in respect of Provident fund except as stated below, is a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a
post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any
further amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to a Government administered
provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Group's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(i) Defined benefit plan

Provident fund

Contributions made to the Government in respect of the employee’s pension scheme are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which incurred.

Gratuity

The Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Such net obligation is recognized either as an asset or as a liability in the balance
sheet. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Group's obligation is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Methad which recognizes each period of service that gives rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of taxes, for the period in which they occur. All expenses related to defined benefit plan is recognised in
employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Past service cost both vested and unvested is recognised as an expense at the earlier of

- when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and

- when the entity recognises related restructuring cost or termination benefits.

The Group recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement

oocurs.
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C o

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or
receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve moniths
after the end of the period in which the emplayees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit, The obligation in respect of compensated
absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitlerent and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan is based on the market yields as at the balance
sheet date on Government securities, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of taxes, for the period in which they occur. To the extent
the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer the utilization or encashment of the accumulated compensated absences, the
liability determined based on actuarial valuation is considered to be a current liability

Employee stock compensation

Capgemini SE, the ultimate parent company has also allocated performance shares of the group company to the employees of the
Company. The grant of the such performance and employment linked shares relate to the share capital of the group company and has no
impact on the Company’s share capital.

Such stock based awards’ compensation expenses is recognised in "Employee benefits expense” in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding credit to current / non-current financial liabilitites.

Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to
an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income,

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. .
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultanecusly.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that affects neither accounting nor
taxable Profit and Loss at the time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;
and

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history
of recent losses, the Group recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable prafit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative
to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, buyback, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, withaut a corresponding change in resources.
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The number of equity shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of equity shares
considered to derive the basic EPS, and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential equity shares which are deemed converted at the beginning of reporting peried, unless issued at a later date.

q) Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation, Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Onerous Contracts

A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group from the contract are lower than
the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the
Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

r) Contingent liabilities

L

—

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recagnized because it cannot be measured reliably.

The Group daoes not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Consolidated financial statements.

Statement of cash flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a nan-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating,

investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

t) Financial instruments

i, Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All ather financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised

when the Group becomes a party to the contractual pravisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue of financial asset or financial liability are added to or deducted
from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

i, Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

an initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

5 amortised cost;

= Fvocl

- FVTPL
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business

madel for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business madel whase objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A Financial assets is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial

assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at FVOC| These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective
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Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ili. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of awnership and does
not retain control of the financial asset, If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. The Group also
derecagnises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In
this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group

currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment

i) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
= financial assets measured at amortised cost; and

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost . A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:

# significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or mare;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which are measured

as 12 month expected credit losses:

- bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument,

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12
manths after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk, When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's
histarical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information,

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 180 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising

security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is 360 days or more past due,
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Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accardance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive),

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet:

- Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

- For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and is recognised in OCL

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's
procedures for recovery of amounts due,

ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reportingFor impairment testing, assets that do not
generate independent cash inflows are combined together inta cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs, date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash fiows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the CGLU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amaount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, Impairment losses
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the camying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or Group of CGUs)
on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods,The Group reviews at each reparting date
whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which

would have been applicable fram April 1, 2020
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Transition to Ind AS

For the purposes of reporting as set out in Note 2 , The Company has transitioned the basis of accounting from Indian generally
accepted accounting principles ("IGAAP") (which was the previous GAAP) to Ind AS. The accounting policies set out in note 2(a) have
been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, the comparative information presented in these
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2018 (the
“"transition date”).

In preparing the opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted amounts reported in financial statements prepared in
accordance with IGAAP. An explanation of how the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has affected the financial performance, cash flows
and financial position is set out in the following tables and the notes that accompany the tables. On transition, the Company did not
revise estimates previously made under IGAAP except where required by Ind AS.

Exemption availed on first-time adoption on Ind AS 101
Ind AS 1017 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS,
The Company has accordingly applied the following exemptions:-

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect to:
measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at
that date.

use a previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment at or before the date of transition as deemed cost at the
date of the revaluation, provided the revaluation was at the date of their revaluation, broadly comparable to

-Fair Value
-or cost or depreciated cost under Ind AS adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or specific price index

use carrying values of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as on the date of transition to Ind AS (which are measured in
accordance with previous GAAP and after making adjustments relating to decommissioning liabilities prescribed under Ind AS 101) if
there has been no change in its functional currency on the date of transition,

As permitted by Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure property, plant and equipment at their carrying values under Indian GAAP
as at transition date"

Non current investments

As per Ind AS 1071, an entity shall measure investment in subsidiaries, joint venture or assaciate at one of the following amounts in its
separate opening Ind AS Balance Sheet:

(a) cost determined in accordance with Ind AS 27; or

(b) deemed cost.

As permitted by Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure investment in subsidiaries at cost at that date.
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Reconciliation of equity

(Currency : INR in million)

[ As at 1st April 2018 | As at 31st March 2019 |
Particulars Note  Amount Effects of Amount Amount Effects of Amount
No. as per transitionto  as per as per  transition to as per
IGAAP Ind AS Ind AS IGAAP Ind AS Ind AS
Assets
Mon - Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 73.61 = 73.61 56.73 = 56.73
Right to use of assets - 22817 22817 - 187.689 187.69
Intangible Assets 5.58 S 5.58 2.54 - 2.54
Financial Assets -

Other financial assets 2 30.65 (11.81) 18.74 31.80 (10.45) 2135
Deferred tax assets (net) 3 LT 2.05 33.16 40.03 544 4547
Income tax assets (net) 4043 - 4043 43,69 - 43,69
Other non-current assets 7.06 = 7.06 4.05 - 4,05
Total Non-Current assets 188.44 218.31 406.75 178.84 182.68 361.52
Current assets
Financial Assets

Trade receivables 326.83 - 326.83 332.04 - 332.04
Cash and cash equivalents 368.55 - 368.55 93454 = 934,54
Other financial assets 12.01 - 12.01 4.65 - 465
Other current assets 103.83 3.31 107.14 237.48 2.83 240.31
Total Current assets 811.22 3 B14.53 1,508.71 2.83 1,511.54
Total Assets 999.66 221.62 1,221.28 1,687.55 185.51 1.873.06
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 3734 - 3734 37.34 - 37.34
Other Equity 674.44 0.86 67530 71474 (4.10) 710.64
Total equity 711.78 0.86 712.64 752.08 (4.10) 747.98
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Lease liabilities 4 - 215.96 215.96 % 183.69 183.69
Provisions 52.95 - 52.95 63.23 2 63.23
Other non-current liabilities 5 25.24 (25.24) - 25.22 {26.22) -
Total non-current liabilities 78.19 190.72 268.91 88.45 158.47 246.92
Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
-Due to Micro Enterprises and Small - - 5 > o .
Enterprises
-Due to other than Micro Enterprises and 72.98 = 72108 687.11 - 687.11
Small Enterprises
Lease liabilities 6 - 30.95 3095 - 32.27 3227
Cther financial liabilities 86.14 - 86,14 73.28 = 73.28
Other current liabilities if 36.86 - 36.86 50.64 - 50.64
Provisions 1.94 (0.91) 1.03 238 (1.13) 1.25
Income tax liabilities (net) 11,77 - 11.77 33.61 - 3361
Total current liabilities 209.69 30.04 239.73 847.02 31.14 878.16
Total Equity and Liabilities 999.66 221.62 1,221.28 1,687.55 185.51 1,873.06
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Notes to Reconciliation of equity
Right to use Assets & Lease liability as per IND AS 116

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the compay has to create Financial Lease Assets and Financial Lease Liabilities for the assets taken ©on lease for a
period more than 12 months. On implementation of Ind AS 116, Lease assets and lease laibilities has been created as on Tst April 2018
considering modified restrospective approach. Interest expenses is booked on lease liabilities and depreciation is charged on financial lease
assets in FY 2018-19.

Fair valuation of security deposits
Under Ind AS 109, Deposits are financial assets and need to be measured at fair value using a discounted cash flow method. Under previous

GAAP, such deposits were measured at historical cost. Due to this security deposits amount has been reduced and amortized till st April 2018
through retained earnings and remaining amount is adjusted with right of use of assets as per Ind AS 116.
Interest income on prepaid rent js adjusted with retained earnings.

In accordance with Ind AS 12, “Income Taxes”, the Company on transition to Ind AS has recognised deferred tax on temporary differences, i.e.
based on balance sheet approach as compared to the earlier approach of recognising deferred taxes on timing differences , i.e. Profit and Loss
approach. The tax impacts as above primarily represent deferred tax.

5 & 7 Lease equalization reserve

In compliance eof Ind AS 116, The lease equilization reserve created as per previous GAAP has been adjusted with Right of use of assets
created on discounting of lease laibilities.
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Particulars Note No. PR Effects of Amount
as per transition to as per
IGAAP Ind AS ind AS
Income
Revenue from operations 1 2,967.98 - 2.967.98
Other income, net 2 26.12 1.46 27.58
Total Income 2,994.09 1.46 2,995.56
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 3 797.73 052 798.25
Finance costs 4 0.25 20.38 20.63
Depreciation and amortization expenses 5 36.35 4135 77.70
Other expenses 6 2,013.50 (52.07) 1,961.43
Total expenses 2,847.83 10.18 2,858.01
Profit before tax 146.26 (8.72) 137.55
Tax Expenses
- Current tax 120.62 = 12062
- Deferred tax 7 (8.91) (3.55) (12.46)
-Tax of earlier year provided / (written back) 3.66 - 3.66
Total Tax Expenses 115.37 (3.55) 111.82
Profit for the Year 30.89 (5.16) 25.73
Other comprehensive (loss) / income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to consolidated statement of Profit and Loss 8 - 0.52 0.52
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (0.15) (0.15)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to Consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 9.40 (0.16) 9.24
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified subsequently
to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income, net of tax 9,40 0.21 9,61
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period 40.29 (4.96) 35.34
Profit attributable to
Owners of the company 30.89 (5.16) 2573
Total Comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of the company 40.29 (4.96) 3534
Earnings per equity share : 34
Nominal value of Share Rs. 1 (31st March 2019: Rs.1)
- Basic (In Rs,)-Other than Class A and Class A 1.16 (0.14) 1.02
- Diluted (In Rs.)-Other than Class A and Class A 1.16 (0.14) 1.02
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Reconcilation of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March (Currency : INR in million)

Notes to reconcilation of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Income
In Previous GAAP, Discount is charged to P8I as expenses and Under IND AS 115, Discount are shown as deduction from revenue from

Operations.
Interest on security deposits
Under Ind AS 109, Deposits are financial assets and need to be measured at fair value using a discounted cash flow method, Under

previous GAAP, such deposits were measured at historical cost. .
Interest income charged on Security deposit each year on the present value of security deposits

Remeasurement of Employee Benefit cost
As per Ind AS 19, Employees Benefits, acturial gains and losses are recagnized in other comprehensive Income and not reclassified to P&L
in Subsequent period.

Right to use Assets & Lease liability as per IND AS 116

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the compay has to create Financial Lease Assets and Financial Lease Liabilities for the assets taken on lease for
a period more than 12 months. On implementation of Ind AS 116, Lease assets and lease laibilities has been created as on 1st April 2018
considering modified restrospective approach. Interest expenses is booked on lease liabilities and depreciation is charged on financial
lease assets in FY 2018-19.

Deferred Tax Impact on Ind AS adjustments

In accordance with Ind AS 12, “Income Taxes", the Company on transition to Ind AS has recognised deferred tax on temporary differences,
i.e. based on balance sheet approach as compared to the earlier approach of recognising deferred taxes on timing differences , i.e. Profit
and Loss approach. The tax impacts as above primarily represent deferred tax.
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019

(Currency : INR in million)

Note uity Reconciliation
Recimlais Reference 1 April 2018 31 March 2019
Shareholder's equity for the as per previous GAAP (Indian
GAAP) 674.44 714.74
Ind AS adjustments:
Security Depasits for rental premises 3| 3.45 491
Prepaid Rent Amortization 2 (4.63) (5.12)
Depreciation on Right to use 3 - (41.35)
Effect of remeasurement of post-employment benefit
obligation recognized through Other comprehensive
income (0.37)
Interest on Lease liabilty 4 = (20.38)
Reversal of Rent due to applicabilty of IND AS 116* 5 - 5237
Lease equilization reserve 6 0.19
Other comprehensive income 0.37
Deferred Tax on above g 2.04 5.44
Foreign Exchange on conversion of fareign operations = (0.17)
Shareholder’s equity as per Ind AS 675.30 710.64

*An amount of Rs 9.35 millions has been adjusted via outsourcing expenses in statement of Profit & Loss because rental
expenses are booked under outsourcing expenses because same is reimbursed by its halding company

Notes to reconciliation of total equity and total comprehensive income

Fair valuation of security deposits
Under Ind AS 108, Deposits are financial assets and need to be measured at fair value using a discounted cash flow

method. Under previous GAAP, such deposits were measured at historical cost. Due to this security deposits amount has
been reduced and amortized till 1st April 2018 through retained earmings and remaining amount is adjusted with right
of use of assets as per Ind AS 116.

Interest income on prepaid rent is adjusted with retained eamnings.

Right to use & Lease liability

On adoption of Ind AS 116, the compay has to create Financial Lease Assets and Financial Lease Liabilities for the assets
taken on lease for a period more than 12 months, On implementation of Ind AS 176, Lease assets and lease laibilities
has been created as on 1st April 2018 considering modified restrospective approach. Interest expenses is booked on
lease liabilities and depreciation is charged on financial lease assets in FY 2018-19,

6 Lease equilization reserve

The Company has lease rent escalation within the long term leases entered into. It does not straight line such
escalations under the Previous GAAP.

Under Ind AS there is a carve out that if the rate of escalation is in line with the rate of inflation rentals are not required
to be straight-lined. If it is not in line with inflation, the entity would need to straight-line such escalations.

The impact on total equity and Profit and Loss is on account of timing difference in recognition of expenses under the
lease accounting model as compared to those recognised under the Previous GAAP

7 Deferred Tax

Previous GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences
between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes
using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or
liability in the balance sheet and its tax base, The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of
deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required to be recognised under previous GAAP.
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Currency : INR in million)

Gross Carrying Value Depreciation Net Carrying Value
Description As At Additions Disposal Other As At As At for the Disposal Other As At As At As At
1st April Adjustment* | 31st March | 1st April year* Adjustment* | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
2019 2020 2019 2020 2020 2019
Leasehold Improvements 42.54 - 0.68 ¥ 41,86 13.29 13.24 0.32 - 26.21 15.65 29,25
Computers 33.86 16.91 264 1.67 49,80 1252 13.78 1.05 1.55 26.80 23.00 21.34
Furniture and Fixtures 8.87 0.59 1.77 0.58 8.27 5.96 199 1.70 0.52 6.77 1.50 291
Office equipment 4.87 7.48 0.76 0.1 11.70 1.64 1.86 0.55 0.10 3.05 8.65 3.23
TOTAL 90.14 24.98 5.85 2.36 111.63 33.41 30.87 3.62 2.17 62.83 48.80 56.73
Gross Carrying Value Depreciation Net Carrying Value
Description As At Additions Disposal Other As At As At for the Disposal Other As At As At As At
1st April Adjustment* | 31st March | 1st April year* Adjustment* | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
2018 2019 2018 2019 2019 2018
Leasehold Improvements* 4254 - - - 42.54 - 13.29 - - 13.29 29.25 42,54
Computers* 18.98 14.15 0.05 0.78 33.86 - 12.01 0.03 0.54 12.52 21.34 18.61
Furniture and Fixtures* 8.59 - 0.03 0.3 8.87 - 5.83 0.03 0.17 5.96 2.91 8.59
Office equipment* 3.50 1.56 0.25 0.06 4.87 B 1.83 0.23 0.03 1.64 3.23 3.50
TOTAL 73.61 15.71 0.33 1.15 90.14 - 32.96 0.29 0.74 3341 56.73 73.24

*Other adjustment refers to adjustment pertaining foreign exchange on conversion of fareign operations
3.1 There are no adjustments to Property, Plant and Equipment on account of borrowing costs and exchange differences. There is no revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment during the year

*As at April 1, 2018 the Company has elected to measure its property, plant and equipment at their carrying value as per previous GAAP. Accordingly, the company has computed its carrying value as follows:-

Description Gross Carrying Value as at| Depreciation upto 1st | Net Carrying Value as at
1st April 2018 April 2018 1st April 2018
Right of use- Office Premises 22817 - 228.17
Leasehold Improvements 79.46 36.92 42.54
Computers 81.80 62.83 18.97
Furniture and Fixtures 26.05 17.46 m.mm_«
Office equipment 11.15 7.65 350!
TOTAL 426.63 124.86 301.77




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Right of use assets

{Currency : INR in million)

Gross Carrying Value Depreciation Net Carrying Value
Description As At Additions Disposal Other As At As At for the Disposal Other As At As At As At
1st April Adjustment* | 31st March | 1st April year® Adjustment* | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
2019 2020 2019 2020 2020 2019
Right of use of assets 229.11 1.83 18.08 0.72 213.58 4142 40.65 18.08 - 63.99 149.59 187.69
TOTAL 229,11 1.83 18.08 0.72 213.58 41.42 40.65 18.08 - 63.99 149.59 187.69
Gross Carrying Value Depreciation Net Carrying Value
Description As At Additions Disposal Other As At As At for the Disposal Other As At As At As At
1st April Adjustment* | 31st March | 1st April year* Adjustment* | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
2018 2019 2018 2019 2019 2018
Right of use of assets 22817 - - 0.94 229.11 - 41.36 - 0.06 4142 187.69 -
TOTAL 228.17 - - 0.94 229.11 - 41.36 - 0.06 41.42 187.69 -
Intangible Assets
Gross Carrying Value Amortization Net Carrying Value
Description As At Additions Disposal Other As At As At for the Disposal Other As At As At As At
1st April Adjustment* | 31st March | 1st April year* Adjustment* | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
2019 2020 2019 2020 2020 2019
Computer software 5.98 1.09 - 0.19 7.26 344 218 = 0.18 5.80 1.46 2,54
(including Inhouse Generated
Software)
Total 5.98 1.09 - 7.26 3.44 2.18 - 0.18 5.80 1.46 2.54
Gross Carrying Value Amortization Net Carrying Value
Intangible Assets As At Additions Disposal Other As At As At for the Disposal Other As At As At As At
1st April Adjustment* | 31st March | 1st April year* Adjustment* | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
2018 2019 2018 2019 2019 2018
(Deemed (Deemed
Cost) Cost)
Computer software 5.58 0.29 - 011 5.98 - 338 - 0.06 3.44 2.54 5.58
(including Inhouse Generated
| Software)
Total 5.58 0.29 - 5.98 - 3.38 - 0.06 3.44 2.54 5.58

5.1 There are no adjustments to Intangible Assets on account of borrowing costs and exchange differences. There is no revaluation of Intangible Assets during the year,

5.2 As at April 1, 2018 the Company has elected to measure its Intangible assets at their carrying value as per previous GAAP. Accordingly, the Gross Block is_carsiad at INR 100.71 million and Accumulated
Depreciation is at INR 95.13 million . Accordingly, the Net Value is carried at INR 5.58 million.

*Other adjustment refres to adjustment pertaining foreign exchange on conversion of foreign operations
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Currency : INR in million)

Other financial Assets
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 20,05 2115 18.44
Loans to related parties (refer note 35) 24331 - -
Fixed deposit - Others 0.20 0.20 0.30
Total 263.56 21.35 18.74
Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Deferred Tax Asset
Provisions - employee benefits 26.06 27.70 20.95
Lease Liabilities 712 5.57 344
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 13.27 9.45 7.88
Others 349 275 0.89
Total Deferred tax Assets 49,94 45.47 33.16
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (Refer Note no.30) 49.94 45.47 33.16
Income tax assets (net)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Income Tax Assets (net) 4340 43.69 40.43
Total 43.40 43.69 40.43
Other non-current assets
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Prepaid expenses = 365 7.06
Capital advances - 0.40 -
Total - 4.05 7.06
Trade receivables (unsecured)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Trade receivables consists of the following
-considered good 429.25 332.04 326.83
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables = = =
Total 42925 332.04 326.83
- Credit impaired 25.08 39.12 3.93
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables (25.08) (39.12) (3.93)
Total = = =
Grand Total 429.25 332.04 326.83

In determining the allowance for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected
credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss
experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the

receivables that are due and rates used in provision matrix

Trade Receivable Includes;
Dues from related parties (refer note 35)
Other receivables
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Currency : INR in million)

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Cash in hand 0.12 012 012
Balances with banks
in Current accounts 618.63 934,42 36843
Total 618.75 934.54 368.55
Other financial assets
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances to employees 0.60 441 10.53
Other recoverables 164.37 - -
Security deposits 201 0.23 1.37
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 0.02 0.01 0.1
Total 167.00 4.65 12.01
Other Receivable Includes receivable from Capgemini America Inc. as at 31st Mar 2020 { 31 Mar 2019 : Nil, 31 Mar 2018 : Nil)
Other Current Assets
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Prepaid expenses 1142 1174 24.75
Unbilled revenues 240.79 173.07 24,45
Balances with government authorities 48.99 5241 51.63
(GST / Service tax credit receivable)
Advances to vendors 164.88 312 6.31
Total 466.08 240.31 107.14
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Liguidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Ci lidated Financial Stat ts for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)
Share Capital
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2020 31st March 2019 1st April 2018
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Autharised
Equity share of Re 1/- sach
Class A equity shares B,364,062 B3 8,364,062 B36 8,364,062 836
Equity shares other than Class A 41,635,938 4164 41535938 A1.64 41,635,938 4164
Total 50,000,000 50,00 50,000,000 50,00 50,000,000 50,00
i f - &acl
Opening 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 B35
Additions - - = S = =
Deletions - - - 5 = =
Closing (a) 8,364,062 836 B,364,062 836 8,364,062 836
Opening 41,635,938 41.64 41,635,938 41.64 41,635,938 4164
Additions. - = = - - -
Deletions - - - - - -
Closing (b) 41,635,938 4184 41,635938 41.64 41,635,938 41.64
Total (a+b) 50,000,000 50.00 50,000,000 50.00 50,000,000 50.00
lssued
Equity Share of Re 1/ each
Class A Equity Shares 8,364,062 B36 8,364,062 836 B,364,062 836
Equity Shares other than Class A 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 28.98 28,981,623 2858
Total 37,345,685 3734 37,345,685 v 37,345,685 3734
1 u al i - Ba
Opening B,364,062 B35 8,364,062 8.36 8,364,062 836
Additions - - - - = -
Deletions - - - - - -
Closing (a) B,364,062 B36 8,364,062 8.36 8,364,062 836
Opening 28,981,623 28.98 28,981,623 2858 28,981,623 2B98
Additions 2 = = - - -
Deletions - - - 2 i 9
Closing (b) 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 2898
Total (a+b) 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34
a8
Equity Share of Re.1/- each
Class A Equity Shares 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 836 B,364,062 836
Equity Shares other than Class A 28,981,623 25.98 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 2898
Total 37,345,685 3734 37,345,685 3734 37,345,685 3734
Class A Equity Share of Re, 1/~ each
Opening 8,364,062 B36 8,364,062 B8.35 8,364,062 836
Additions = - = - = -
Deletions - = = - - -
|Closing (a) 8,364,062 B36 8,364,062 836 8,364,062 836
Equity Shares other than Class A of Re, 1/- each
Opening 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 2898
Additions ot . - - : -
Deletions = 2 = - = =
Closing (b) 28,981,623 2898 28,981,623 2898 26,961,623 2898
Total (a+b) 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34
Total 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34 37,345,685 37.34

The rights, preference and restrictions attached to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital
are as under:

The company vide Special Resolution dated 27.05.2018 , altered its Articles of Association and removed restriction with regard to payment of dividend to
Class A shares. Accordingly , issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company has been reclassified and rank pari passu,

The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the Campany, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assels of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amaunts, if any, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

14.2 The following hold more than 5% in equity shares of the company

Name of Shareholder Class As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 As at 1st April 2018
No. of Shares | % of Holding | No. of Shares | % of Holding | No. of Shares | % of Holding
held held held

Rahul Sahgal A - = = 8,364,062 2240
Liquidhub Inc Other than A - = - 28,981,623 7760
Capgemini America Inc, subsidiary of A - = 8,364,061 2240 - -
Capgemini North America Inc. Cther than A = = 28,961,623 7760 = -
Capgemini Technology Services India A 8,364,061 22.40 = = = -
Private Limited Other than A 28,981,623 77.60 = = = -
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

Lease liabilities

(Currency ; INR in millior)

Particulars As at 31st March| As at 31st March| As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018

Non-Current

Long term maturities of finance lease obligations* 157.08 183.69 21596

Total 157.08 183.69 215.96

Provisions

Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March| As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018

Non-Current

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (unfunded) (refer note no 31) 62.64 50.80 42.96

Compensated absences (unfunded) (refer note no 317) 14.31 1243 9.99

Share Based Payments Liabilities (refer note no 40) 3.7 = -

Total 80.12 63.23 52.95

Trade and other payables

Pasttcalars As at 31st March | As at 31st March | As at 1st April

2020 2019 2018

Due to micro and small enterprises parties (refer note No.39) 0.24 = #

Due to other than micro and small enterprises parties 241.60 687.11 72.98

Total 241.84 687.11 72.98

Lease liabilities

Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March| As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018

Current

-Current maturities of finance lease obligations 26.61 3227 30.95

Total 26.61 32.27 30.95

Other financial liabilities

Pusticitare As at 31st March | As at 31st March| As at 1st April

2020 2019 2018

Current

Non Trade Payables to Others 7.98 8.24 15.56

Employee Payables 37.16 41.74 6145

Expense Payables 31.41 23.30 9.13

Total 76.55 73.28 86.14
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Currency : INR in milliors)

Other Current Liabilities
Packicalkis As at 31st March| As at 31st March| As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Unearned eevenue 59.56 15.32 676
Advances from Customers - 12.24 0.39
Statutory dues payable* 35,12 23.08 29.71
Total 94.68 50.64 36.86
*Statutory dues payable comprises of -
Goods and Services Tax payable 11.60 11.20 2.05
Tax Deducted at Source payable 16.37 5.94 19.71
Provident Fund payable 7.1 542 6.99
Profession Tax payable 0.01 0.40 077
Employees State Insurance payable 0.03 012 0.19
35.12 23.08 29.71
Provisions
Particiilars As at 31st March| As at 31st March| As at 1st April
2020 2019 2018
Current
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (unfunded) (refer note no 31) 1.29 D.94 0.79
Compensated absences (unfunded) (refer note no 31) 0.31 031 0.24
Total 1.60 1.25 1.03
Income tax liabilities (net)
Particilars As at 31st March| As at 31st March| As at 1st April
’ 2020 2019 2018
Provision for Income Tax(net of Advance Tax) 54.44 33.61 11.77
Total 94.44 33.61 11.77
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Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Currency : INR in million)

Revenue from Operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Revenue from operations 3,011.25 2,967.98

Total 3,011.25 2,967.98

Revenue from software services includes Rs.13.59 (previous year Rs. Nil) towards out of pocket expenses reimbursed by the

customers.

Disaggregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by contract type and geography :

Revenue by contract type :

Time & material contracts

Fixed price contracts

Fixed price maintenance contracts
Total

Revenue by Geography :

America

Europe

India

Rest of the world
Total

Reconciliation of revenue recognized with the contracted price is as follows:

Contracted price
Discounts
Revenue recognised

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
751.34 761.28
2,256.80 220422
3.1 248
3,011.25 2,967.98
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
2,842,684 2,731.27
18.78 3475
87.36 117.26
62.27 84,70
3,011.25 2,967.98
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
3,035.05 3,000.50
23.80 32,52
3,011.25 2,967.98

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at 31 March 2020 is Rs 241840 (31
March 2019 : Rs 2152.75). Out of this, the Company expects to recognize revenue of around 67.32%(31 March 2019 : 53.97%) within
the next one year and the remaining thereafter.

The Group has presented contract assets as "Unbilled revenues” in Other current assets and "Unearned revenues” in Other current
liabilities in the balance sheet. The table below gives changes in contract assets and liabilities during the year

31-Mar-20
Contract assets Contract liabilities
Opening balance 173.07 (15.32)
Revenue recognised during the year 240,79 15.32
Increase due to invoices raised during the year (173.07) (59.56)
Closing balance 240.79 (59.56)
31-Mar-19
Contract assets Contract liabilities
Opening balance 24.45 6.76
Revenue recognised during the year 173.07 (6.76)
Increase due to invoices raised during the year (24.45) 15.32
Closing balance 173.07 15.32

The Company has determined the revenue billed during the year on a FIFO basis to arrive at the "Increase due to invoices raised
during the year".




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

24 Other income, net

(Currency : INR in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Interest on deposits with banks 0.01 0.01
Interest Income on Cthers (at amortized cost} 1.57 1.46
Other interest 6.95 0.01
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 50.68 13.37
Balances Written back 4 11.04
Profit on sale of non-current investments 10.04 =
Other Miscellaneous Income 247 1.69
Provision for doubtful trade receivables written back 0.26 =
Total 71.98 27.58
25 Employee benefits expense
Particiers For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Salaries, Bonus and Incentives 725.04 732.23
Contribution to provident and other funds g L 35.19
Retirement benefits expense (refer note no 31) 1367 11.94
Compensated absences (refer note no 31) 72 5.02
Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 40) 3.31 =
Staff welfare expenses 563 13.87
Total 797.74 798.25
26 Finance Costs
For the year ended For the year ended
Particul
i 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Interest on:
lease liability 17.61 20.38
Others 0.40 0.25
Total 18.01 20.63
27 Depreciation and amortization
St For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 71.52 74.32
Amortisation of intangible assets 218 338
Total 73.70 77.70




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020

28 Other expenses

29

(Currency ; INR in million)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
(iij)income tax relating to items that will be reclassified subsequently to

Paciiaibin For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Rent 219 7.57
Repairs & maintenance

-Computers 2.82 4.80

-Others 0.05 0.05

-Office Maintenance 3295 46.67
Insurance 0.56 1.7
Rates &t Taxes 0.86 0.21
Communication Expenses 403 9.59
Software and Hardware Expenses 29.20 17.98
Allowance for debt receivables 6.83 35.36
Power and fuel 8.85 §.87
Advertisement and sales promotion 257 7.77
Travelling & Conveyance 50.98 62.36
Stationery and printing expenses 048 0.25
Legal and professional charges 64.35 125.52
Prepaid rent amortization expenses 0.48 0.48
Group management fee 3073 2.18
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 38) 4.05 2.98
Miscellaneous expenses 2567 34,12
Sub-contracting expenses 1,085.08 1,576.11|_
Bank charges and other financial expenses 1.79 338
Training and recruitment B.56 11.85
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment (Net) 0.75 0.04
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility initiatives (Refer note 253 212
41)
Total 1,366.36 1,961.43
Statement of other comprehensive income For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Afi) ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans (0.41) 0.52
{iifincome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 012 (0.15)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
B(i)ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to Consolidated Statement of ~ -
Profit and Loss Effective portion of gains / (loss) on hedging instruments
arcounted for as cash flow hedaes
2297 9.24

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
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30 Tax expenses
|Income tax exp recognised in St of Profit and Loss: 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
A|Current income tax
Current tay expense for current year 13532 12062
Current tax expense / (benefit) pertaining te prior years 233 366
B|Deferred income tax

Deferred tax charge / (credit) (4.35) (12.46)
Tax exy for the year 133.30 111.82
Income tax exg recognised in other comprehensive income:
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Before tax | Tax {(expense) | Net of tax Before tax | Tax (exg )| Metof tax

benefit benefit
Iterns that will not be reclassified subsequently to
Cansolidated Statement of Prafit and Loss
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans {0.41) 012 (0.29) 0.52 0.15) 0.37
(0.41) 0.12 (0.29) 0.52 (0.15) 0.37

|Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Profit before tax 82742 137.55
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate of 29.12% for both years 240.94 40.05
Tax Effect of;
Tax effect due to income tax holidays (23.21) (15.50)
Tax effect due to Deduction under chapter VI-A (0.37) 0.31)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 19.45 1812
Income tawes relating to prior years 233 3166
Others (105.84) 65.80
Total income tax expense 133.30 111.82
Effective Tax Rate 16.11 81.29

Under the Indian Income-tax Act, 1967, the Company is eligible to claim income tax holiday an profits derived from the export of software services fram
divisions registered under Special Economic Zone ("SEZ") 2005 scheme. Profits derived from the export of software services from these divisions registered
under the SEZ scheme are eligible for a 100% tax holiday during the initial five consecutive assessment years, followed by 509 for further five years and 50%
of such profits or gains for the balance period of five years subject to fulfilment of certain conditions, from the date of commencement of operations by the
respective SEZ units, The impact of tax haliday units resulted in tax benefit of 23.21 millions and 15.5 millions far current and previous year respectively.
This tax relief holiday will begin to expire from FY 201213 through FY 2021-22

30.1 [Income tax assets and liabilties 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Income tax assets (net) 43.40 43.69 4043
Income tax liabilities (net) 94.44 3361 11.77

30.2 Movement in deferred tax balances

Particulars Net balance | Recognised in | Recognised in | Net balance
April 1, 2019 | Statement of ocl March 31,
Profit and 2020
Loss
Deferred Tax Asset
Provisions - employee benefits 27.70 (1.76) 012 26,08
Lease liabilities 5.57 1.55 7az
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 945 3.82 13.27
Others 275 0.74 348
Total Deferred tax Assets 45.47 4.35 0.12 49,94
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 45.47 4,35 0.12 49.94
30.3 in deferred tax balances
Particulars Net balance |Recognised in | Recognised in| Net balance
April 1, 2018 | Statement of oci March 31,
Profit and 2019
Loss
Deferred Tax Asset
Provisions - employee benefits 2095 6.90 (0.15) 27.70
Lease liabilities 344 213 - 5.57
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 788 1.57 9.45
Others 0.89 186 = 275
Total Deferred tax Assets 33.16 12.46 (0.15) 45.47
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 33.16 12.46 (0.15) 45.47

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if, and only if, it has a legally enforceable right to set off tax liabilities against tax assets, The Company has no
tax losses which arose in India that are available for offset against future taxable profits.

Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of
deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimatas of

M~
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Employee benefit plans
Gratuity benefits

The Company operates a post employment benefit plan that provides for gratuity benefit to eligible employees. The gratuity
plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous services, to receive one-half manth's salary for
each year of completed service at the time of retirement / exit.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
position of assets and obligations relating to the plan.

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Amount to be recognised in balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 63.93 51.74 43.75
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Net Liability 63.93 51.74 43.75
Amounts in the Balance Sheet:
Liabilities Current 1.29 0.94 0.79
Non-current 62.64 50.80 42.95
Present Value of defined benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year

51.74 43.75 38.55

Current service cost 9.80 852 7.76
Interest cost 3.96 341 2.83
Benefits paid (1.98) (3.42) (3.22)
Actuarial (gains) / losses 0.41 (0.52) (2.17)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year (A) 63.93 51.74 4375
Fair Value of plan asset
Fair Vialue of plan assets at beginning of the year 2 = -
Cantributions by employer - - -
Expected return - - -
Actuarial gains - - -
Benefits paid - - -
Fair Value of plan assets at end of the year (B) - - -
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet (A-B) 63.93 51.74 43.75
Included in OCI
Opening amount recognised in OCI outside the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (0.41) 052 217
Demographic assumptions 0.01 = -
Financial assumptions 7.24 (0.47) (3.22)
Experience adjustment (6.84) (0.05) 1.05
Return on plan assets excluding interest income £ = s

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 9.80 852 7.76
Interest cost 396 341 2.83
Expected return on plan assets - - -
Total included in “Employee benefit expenses” 13.76 11.93 10.59

Return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assets -
Actuarial gain

Actual return on plan assets




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-12

Category of Assets % %o

Government debt instruments 0% 0%

Insurer managed funds 0% 0%

Others 0% 0%
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

The principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity benefit are shown below:

Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%

Discount rate 6.85% 7.66%

Expected rate of return on plan assets

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, senierity, promotion and
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. The expected rate of return on plan assets is
based on the long term yield on government bonds. Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics
and mortality tables.

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

(i) As of 31 March 2020, every 0.5 percentage point increase / (decrease) in discount rate will result in (decrease) / increase of
gratuity benefit obligation by approximately Rs. (-4.69) and Rs 5.17 respectively.

(i) As of 31 March 2020 every 0.5 percentage point increase/ (decrease) in expected rate of salary will result in increase /
(decrease) of gratuity benefit obligation by approximately Rs, 5.14 and Rs. (-4.71 Jrespectively,

The Defined Benefit Obligation shall mature after year ended 31 March 2020 as follows - Year Ending March 31

2021 1.29
2022 1.22
2023 1.18
2024 1.44
2025 T7.10
2026 1.06
2027 Onwards 56.63

H. Compensated Absences:
Compensated Absences as at the Balance sheet date, determined on the basis of actuarial valuation based on the “projected
unit credit method” is as below:

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Current provisions 0.31 0.31 024
Non-current provisions 14.31 12.43 9.99

14.62 12.74 10.24

Actuarial Assumptions % p.a. % pa. % p.a.
Discount rate 6.85% 7.66% 7.80%
Salary escalation rate 7% 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition rates
Age (years)
Upto 30 Years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Abaove 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
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Segment reporting

The Group's operations predominantly relate to providing Information Technology ('IT') services, IT Enabled services, and business
process outsourcing services delivered to customers globally through an onsite / offshore model. The Group considers all of these
services to be relating to one segment i.e. IT enabled services. The Group has evaluated its service offerings and has concluded
that the risks and rewards of all these services are identical. Accordingly, the Board of Directors review the performance of the
Group as one primary business segment i.e. IT and IT- enabled operations, solutions and services. Secondary segment reporting is
performed on the basis of the geographical segmentation as the Group operates in various countries,

The Group's geographic segmentation is based on the location of customers. Revenue in relation to geographic segments is
categorised based on the location of the specific customer entity for which services are rendered, irrespective of the customer
entity that is billed for the services and whether the services are delivered onsite or offshore. Categorisation of customer related
assets in relation to geographic segments is based on the location of the specific customer entity which is billed for the services.
Costs are not specifically allocable to individual segments as the underlying resources and services are used interchangeably. The
Group has common fixed assets for development of software. Fixed assets used in the Group’s business or liabilities contracted
have not been identified to any of the reportable segments, as the fixed assets and services are used interchangeably between

segments,

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the Group as a whole,

Geographic Area Country
America Argentina, Brazil, Canada, Chile, Colombia, Guatemnala, Mexico and United States of America
Europe Austria, Belgium, Czech Republicc, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Hungary, Ireland, Italy,

Luxembourg, Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Slovakia, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and
United Kingdom

Rest of the World Australia, Bangladesh, China, Hong Kong, Japan, Malaysia, Mauritius, Oman, Philippines, Saudi Arabia,
Singapore, South Africa, Turkey, Tunisia, United Arab Emirates and Vietnam

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Revenue
- India 87.36 117.26
- Europe 18.78 34.75
- America 2842 84 2731.27
- Rest of the world 62.27 84.70
3011.25 2967.98
Segment assets
Trade receivables (excluding allowance for doubtful receivables)
- India 25.19 36.75
- Europe 1.79 6.19
- America 409.09 315.75
- Rest of the world 18.26 1247
454.33 371.16
Unbilled revenue
- India 14.13 16.23
- Europe 5.48 6.55
- America 204.68 14327
- Rest of the world 16.50 7.02
240.79 173.07
Segment liabilities
Unearned revenue
- India 7.78 032
- Europe 0.78 0.56
- America 48,14 11.80
- Rest of the world 2.86 2.64

59.56 15.32
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Leases
In accordance with IND AS-116. on Leases the following disclosures in respect

Particulars As at 31st March 2020 | Asat 31st March 2019
Depreciation charge for Right of use- Office Premises 40.65 4136
Interest expense on lease liabilities; 17.61 2038
The expenses relating to short-term leases 219 7.57
Total cash outflow for leases including cash
outflow for short term leases ; 52.52 5236
Additions to right-of-use assets; 1.83 0.00
The carrying amount of Right of use- Office Premises at the end of the

149.59 187.69

reporting period.

Lease contracts entered by the Group majorly pertains for office premises taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course.

The Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following table reflects the profit and share data used to compute basic and diluted EPS:

Part cilars F;r the year ended For the year :nded
stMarch2020 | 31stMarch2019 |

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 716.80 35.34

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS (nos.)-Class 8,364,062 5,774,640.78

A

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS (nos.)-Other 28,981,623 28,981,623.00

than Class A

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS (nos.)- 8,364,062 5,774,640.78

Class A

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS (nos.)- 28,981,623.00 28,981,623.00

Other than Class A

Basic earning per share of face value of Rs.1/- each 19.19 1.02
19.19 1.02

Diluted earning per share of face value of Rs.1/- each

o e
liquidhub <
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35 Related Party Transactions

Related Party Disclosures in accordance with Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures” are given below.

Names of related parties and related party relationship

@ Related parties where control exists
Parent Companies
Capgemini America, Inc. (w.e.f. 31st Dec 2018 till 24th Nov 2019)
Capgemini Technology Services India Private Limited (w.e.f, 25th Nov 2019)
Liquidhub Inc, USA (Subsidiary of Capgemini America Inc. w.e.f 07th Mar 2018 till 30th Dec 2018)

b Ultimate parent company
Capgemini SE

¢ Fellow subsidiaries
Liquidhub India Private Limited
Capgemini Technology Services India Private Limited (till 24th Nov 2019)
Capgemini Uk Plc
Capgemini Canada Inc
Capgemini Service S.AS.
Capgemini America Inc
Capgemini Ireland Limited
Capgemini Deutschland Gmbh
Capgemini North America, Inc.
Capgemini Polska Sp Z.0.0
Capgemini Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Liquidhub Spzoo

e Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr, Jonathan Alfred Mark Brassington -Director
Mr. Srinivasa Rao Kandula -Director
Mr. Thierry Delaporte ; -Director (till Mar 27, 2020)
Mr. Sujit Sircar -Director

f Transactions with Related Parties:

(Currency : INIR in million)

S. No. |Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature 2019-20 2018-19 01-Apr-18
Services Received Expenses 0.70 248 -
Services rendered Income 0.55 14.20 -
Balances Written back Income =
1 Liquidhub India Private Limited Closing Balance 5
Trade Receivables Asset 041 3.03
Accrued Income Asset 0.75 -
Trade Payabile Liability 0.51 0.18 2.83
Services Received Expenses —. 27.94 -
Services rendered Income 13.63 =
Balances Written back Income 10.84 -
Closing Balance -
2 Liguidhub Inc. Advance Asset 4.70
Trade Receivables Asset 1.09 3.63
Accrued Income Asset 5.39 -
Trade Payable Liability 743 -
Accrued Expenses Liability 10.84
Services Received Expenses 15.54 15.39 -
o Closing Balance -
# opgRnI LR Trade E‘ayable Liability 27.54 10.29 <
Accrued Expenses Liability 3.94 5.00 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020 (Currency : INR in million)
S. No. [Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature 2019-20 2018-19 01-Apr-18
Services Received Expenses 9.07 # =
Services renderad Income 17.21 3.26 -
- o E Closing Balance -
i Capgemini T.ech_no_logy Services Trade Receivables Femsm 287 320 =
India Limited Accrued Income Asset 110 0.26 -
Trade Payable Liability 412 = -
Accrued Expenses Liability 459 o -
Services rendered Income - 186 =
5 Capgemini Canada Inc ;e:::n;e;::::’tzn kK UL '
Tradé Receivables Asset = 1.80 =
Services Received Expenses 33.44 2,18 -
Services rendered Income 0.02 0.65 -
g z Closing Balance -
8 Capgemini Service SAS Trade Receivables Asset 0.02 0.69 -
Trade Payable Liability 17.58 = =
Accrued Expenses Liability 1.87 218 -
Services Received Expenses 1,127.03 396.01 -
Services rendered Income 1,017.47 123.04 -
Closing Balance -
Advance Asset 155.50 - -
. : Trade Receivables Asset 119.37 2237 =
7 Capgemini America Inc Other Receivable Asset 164.37 -
Accrued Income Asset 163.18 34.07 -
Unearned Revenue Liability 17.74 = =
Trade Payable Liability 103.06 375.74 “
Accrued Expenses Liability = 17.31 -
Services Received Expenses 45,22 35.95 -
8 Capgemini Ireland Limited Closing Balance -
Trade Payable Liability - 35.11 =
Services rendered Income 152 2.90 -
£ Closing Balance ; -
9 ‘Capgemini Deutschland GmbH Trade Receivables Asset - 245 -
Accrued Income Asset - 0.38 -
10 Capgemini North Amercia, Inc. f:::::g Seipnce et 24331 S
Services Received Expenses 62.64 - =
o Closing Balance -
4 Cepgemini Polska Sp Z.0/0 Trade Payable Liability 22.84 - ~
Accrued Expenses Liability 23.04 - R
Services rendered Income 10,19 - -
e Closing Balance -
12 Capgemini Singapore Pte Ltd. Trade Recelvables e 1033 _
Unearned Revenue Liability 0.01 - -
13 LiguidHub Sp.z 0.0. Services Received Expenses 14.94 i I
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{Currency :

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amounts at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction

between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation state,

The Company classifies its inputs used to measure fair value into the following hierarchy :

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 : Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 : Unobservable inputs for assets and liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

31-Mar-20 Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cost
Financial Assets
Other non current financial assets = - - - - =
Trade and other receivables 429.25 42925 - - - =
Cash and cash equivalents 618.75 618.75 = ] 3 g
Other Current financial assets 167.00 167.00 - = - i
- - 1,215.00 1,215.00 - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Non current Lease liabilities = - - - - -
Trade and other payables 241.84 24184 - - - -
Current Lease liabilties 26.61 26.61 5 i T -
Other Current financial liabilities 76.55 76.55 = = - »
- - 345.00 345.00 = = = -
31-Mar-19 Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cost
Financial Assets
Other non current financial assets - - - - - =
Trade and other receivables 332.04 332,04 = - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 934,54 934,54 - - - -
Other Current financial assets 4.65 4.65 - - - -
- - 1,271.23 1,271.23 - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Non current Lease liabilities - - - - - -
Trade and other payables 687.11 687.11 4 " _ =
Current Lease liabilties 32.27 3227 - - - =
Other Current financial liabilities 73.28 73.28 - - - -
- - 792.66 792.66 - - - -
1-Apr-18 Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cost
Financial Assets
Other non current financial assets T = = e =% =
Trade and other receivables 326.83 326.83 # P % =
Cash and cash equivalents 368.55 368.55 = C e =
Other Current financial assets 12.01 12.01 = = = =
- - 707.39 707.39 # = = -
Financial Liabilities
Non current Lease liabilities x %, = 2 = %
Trade and other payables 72.98 72.98 4 = # g
Current Lease liabilties 30,95 3095 - = - »
Other Current financial liabilities B6.14 86,14 = 5 = 5
- - 190.07 190.07 - = = -

|1) Assets that are not financial assets (such as receivables from statutory authorities, prepaid expenses, advances paid and certain other receivables) amounting to Rs
466.08 , Rs.240.31 and Rs.107.14 as of March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively, are not included.

(2) Other liabilities that are not financial liabilities (such as statutory dues payable, deferred revenue, advances from customers and certain other accruals) amounting
to Rs. 96.28 Rs.51.89 and Rs.37.89 as of March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2 ely, are not included.
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B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk ;

- Liquidity risk ; and

-Market risk etc

i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Trade and other receivables

The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of its customers, taking into account the financial conditions, current economic trends
and analysis of histaric bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery from the customer,

The Company has trade receivables primarily from intercompanies for which it does not foresee any credit risk.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables.
Out of the total trade and other receivables of Rs. 454.33 , Rs. 371.16 and Rs. 330.76. as of 31 March 2020, 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018
respectively, the Company has receivables which are past due and impaired as detailed below -

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Balance at the beginning of the year 39.12 ERCE]
Impairment loss recognised (15.35) 35.36
Impairment provision written back (0.26) -
Translation exchange difference 1.58 (0.17)
Balance at the end of the year 25.08 39.12

Credit risk of the Company on cash and cash equivalents and investments is subject to low credit risk since the investments of the Company are
only in liquid debt securities with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating
agencies. Counter parties to foreign currency forward contracts are typically multinational and domestic banks with appropriate market
reputation.

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settied
by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and

include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
Contractual cash flows

One year but
Carrying not more than
31-March-20 amount Within one year five years
Nan current financial liabilities 237.20 237.20
Current financial liabilities 103.16 103.16
Trade and other payables 241.84 24184
Contractual cash flows
; One year but
Camrying Within one year not more than
31-March-19 smount S va
Non current financial liabilities 246,92 246.92
Current financial liabilities 105.55 105.55
Trade and other payables 687.11 687.11
Contractual cash flows
Carrying o One year but
1-April-18 Aot Within one year )
more than five
years
268.91

Nan current financial liabilities
Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
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iii. Market risk

(Currency : INR in million)

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company's
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instrurnents including
foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate
risk . The exposure to market risk is a function of investing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currency. The

objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in foreign currency revenues and costs.

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020, 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is as below:

Foreign currency exposures as on 31 March 2020

Cash and cash
Particulars equivalents
usp 528.38
EUR 0.06
SGD
IPY
GBP
PLN
INR
Foreign currency exposures as on 31 March 2019

Cash and cash
Particulars equivalents
usb 315.31
EUR 0.05
SGD
JPY
GBP
Foreign currency exposures as on 31 March 2018

Cash and cash
Particulars equivalents
usD 267.99
EUR 0.06
SGD
GBP

*excludes allowance for doubtful receivables

Trade
receivables*

205.86
0.24

0.60

Trade
receivables*

129.86
3N

2.40

Trade
receivables*

99.55
8.22

1.69

Other non
current
financial
liabilities

Other non
current
financial
liabilities

Other non
current
financial

liabilities

Trade Payables

42.35
1743

27.54
22.84
046

Trade Payables

244
3519

10.29

Trade Payables

0.09

Other financial
liabilities

Other financial
liabilities

Other financial
liabilities
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37 Contingent Liabilities 8 Commitments

Particilars As at 31st March | As at 31st March
2020 2019
; b
- Bank Guarantees ¥ i
- Income Tax Demand - 7.16

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated February 28, 2019 on Provident Fund
(PF) on the inclusion of allowances for the purpose of PF contribution as well as its applicability of effective date, The Company is
evaluating and seeking legal inputs regarding various interpretative issues and its impact.

38 Auditors' remuneration

For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Statutory audit 280 1.80
Tax audit 0.30 0.35
Other services 0.70 0.70
Out of pocket expenses 025 0.13
Total 4.05 2.98

39 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
The Company has amounts due to suppliers under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED Act) as
at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated
26 August 2008 which recommends that the micro and small enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers
the entrepreneur’s memorandum number as allocated after filing of the memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of
amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 has been made in the financial statements based on the information
received and available with the Company,

As at 31st March | Asat 31st March

Pastioutees 2020 2019
Principal amount remaining unpaid 018 -
Interest due thereon 0.06 0.00

The amount of Interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier - -
beyond the appointed day
The amount of Interest due and payable for the year 0.06 0.00
The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid 0.06 0.00
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, = =
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise

for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by
the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

ke e\
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Employee stock based payments

{Currency : INR in million)

Capgemini SE, the ultimate holding company has approved allocation of performance shares of Capgemini SE to the employees of
Capgemini India Private Limited (transferor company) and its French and non French subsidiaries' employees. These shares have
been allocated to the employees under plans as detailed below. The grant of the above performance and employment linked shares
relate to the share capital of the holding company and shall have no impact on the share capital of the subsidiary compamnies whose
employees are also entitled to the share allocation. The Company recognised compensated expense for these awards using the fair
value method.

The status of the plans have been summarised below -

Particulars 2019 Plan 2018 Plan
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Grant date 02-0ct-19 03-Oct-18 03-Oct-18
Performance assessment dates Three years for Three years for ~ Three years for
the two the two the two
performance performance performance
conditions conditions conditions

4 years as from
the grant date

4 years as from
the grant date

4 years as from -
the grant date

Vesting period

Total numbers of options outstanding at opening - - 1,000
date

Total numbers of options granted during the year 1,000 - - 1,000
Options exercised & c
Options exercised = a
Options forfeited or canceled during the year - -
Options unexercised N

Options lapsed =
Total number of options outstanding at closing date 1,000 5 1,000 1,000

Charge for the year =

During the current and previous year, Capgemini SE, the ultimate parent company, has set up an employee share ownership plan,
where eligible employees of the Company are invited to subscribe to the shares of the ultimate parent company at a discount of
12.5% to the current market price of the ultimate parent company shares. The grant of the above shares relate to the share capital of
the ultimate parent company and shall have no impact on the share capital of the subsidiary companies whose employees are also
entitled to subscribe to the share allocation. The Company recognised campensation expense for these awards using the fair value
method.

Valuation was done by the parent company using the below mentioned assumptions. The status of the plans have been summarised

below -
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Charge for the year 0.14 -*
Movements during the year for employee share purchase plan is a below:
ESOP 2019 ESOP 2018
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Grant date 12-Nov-19 < 12-Nov-18 12-Mov-18
Base price (in euros) 105.45 - 10546 10546
Subscription price (in euros) 9227 - 92.28 92.28
Par value discount (%) 12.50 & 12.50 12.50
& 397 397

Total number of shares subscribed
Charge for the year (INR in Lakhs)




Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited

Notes to the Ci lidated Fi ial 5 for the year ended 31st March 2020

41 Detail of C5R Expenditurs

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has identified areas including activities for promoting programs that benefit the communities
in and arcund the Company’s work centre and further results in enhancing the quality of life and economic well being of the local populace, express
commitment to the soctal development through responsible business practices and good governance, engage with state and its agencies in pursuing the
development agenda for sustainable change for its CSR activities, These areas will be pursued in phases and in a manner aligned with the CSR rules and
ragulations, The funds have been contributed to trusts/arganisations involved in the above activities and will be utilized on the activities which are specified
in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013, The gross amount required to be spent by the Company on CSR activities is Rs. 253 (31 March 2019 Rs. 267)
The total expenditure incurred on 'Corporate Social Responsibility Activities' for the current year is Rs, 2.53 (31 March 2019 Rs. 2.12)

Amount spent during the year on

For the year ended
Rartiaulges 315t March 2020
(iy Canstruction / acquisition of any asset (31st Mar 2019-Rs, Nil) >
(i) CSR Programs (31 March 2019 Rs. 2.12)

Education and vocational training projects 253
Total 2.53
Balance amaunt to be spent by the company © Nil

42 Additional ion as required under Schedule 3 to the panies act 2013 of enterprises consolidated as subsidiary
Share in other Share in total

Name of the Enterprises Net Asseis Share in Profit and Loss comprehensi prehensh

As % of Amount in As % of Amount in As % of Amount in As % of Amount in

Total Rs. Total Rs. Total Rs. Total Rs.

Parent
Liguidhub Analyties Private Limited 59.6% B53.91 23.0% 20934 -1.3% {0.29) 224% 209.05
Subsidiary 0.0% 0.0%
=Annik Inc., USA 371% 53199 90.0% B19.44 101.3% 2248 903% B41.91
-Liquidhub Sp. zowo., Poland 0.0% = -3.5% 31.91) 0.0% = =3.4% (3181
-Dalian Liguidhub Consulting Service 0.8% 10.83 -1.9% (17.04) 0.0% - -1.8% (17.04)
-Annik UK LTD 0.5% 7.06 -0.1% 077 0.0% - -0.1% (077
-Liquidhub PTE LTD. 2.1% 2995 -7.5% (BB.TT) 0.0% - -T.4% {BB.71)

(Figures are taken after elimination of inter campany transactions)
43 Overdue receivables for export services:

As on 31 March 2020, the Company has foreign currency receivables amounting to Rs. 3:22 (31 March 2019 Rs. 5.51) which is outstanding for a period
exceeding nine manths from the invoice date. As per the RBI Master Circular No. 14/2015-16 on Export of Goods and Services updated on 16 July 2015, "It
is abligatory on the part of the exporter to realize and repatriate the full value of goods or sefvices to India within a period of nine menths from the date of
export”. The export proceeds against these dues have not been repatrated within the stipulated period under the FEMA Rules and Regulations.
Management does not expect any penalties/levies in this regard as it has already filed for extension of time for collecting the dues of Rs. 3.22 (31 March
2019: Bs. 5.51) with authorised dealer and is awaiting confirmation.

44 Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under
sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Acl, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the
Company is in the process of updating the dact ion for the ir ional transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the
financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by November 2019 as required under law, The is of the opinion that jts
international transactions are at arm's length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact an the financial statements, particularly on the
amount of tay expense and that of provision for taxation

45 During the year, Liquidhub Analytics Private Limited, the holding company has sold Liquidhub SP Z.0.0 (wholly owned subsidiary) to Capgemini Polska Sp. z
o.0-and sale consideration for the same was received on 19th July, 2012 which has been treated as date of sale / transfer,

45 During the year, Annik UK Limited has filed for liquidation on 17th December, 2019, However, the same is pending subject to approvals from authorities and
the entity is legally active as on 31st March 2020

47 Other Notes:

In the opinion of the management, the value on realization of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of business would nat be less than
the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheat and provisions for all known liabilities has been made.

48 Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary to confirm this year's classification,

As per our report of even date attached
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